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Mr. Mui Chi Hung
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HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Room 109, Building 14
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Ningbo
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IN HONG KONG

Suites 1203-4

12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers
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Bank of China
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Bank of Ningbo

Huaxia Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
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Please contact our Company Secretary at:
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Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:
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March

April

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited was rated by Municipal Food and Drug
Administration as a “Grade A Enterprise in
Quality Assurance” for three consecutive years

Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company
Limited was granted a GSP certification

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited was awarded the “Top 50 Growth-
type Industrial Enterprises 2010” in Yinzhou
District, Ningbo

The Group, through agency arrangement,
introduced and successfully launched a new
product, Mycophenolate Mofetil

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited was
successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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HEFRAE —HPRosEmnE
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October

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited completed drug tenders in Zhejiang
Province and won a total of 25 categories and
35 specifications
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November

December

“Total Glucosides of White Peony Capsules”
(Pafulin) of the Group was included in the
National Key New Product Scheme 2010

Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited
acquired a 20% equity interest in Zhejiang
Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited was awarded with the “Second Grade
Prize in Technology Development in Zhejiang
Province”
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2010 2009 Change
FEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
WA REVENUE 58,607 47,932 22.3%
5 GROSS PROFIT 38,433 32,439 18.5%
FR B A A 7 . PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 12,785 8,903 43.6%
ARRIEA AEIEEN  PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 10,213 7,380 38.4%
SREAREM (XI11)  BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
(US CENTS) 2.7 2.5 8.0%
'ON o 20105 A I &
Revenue 2010F W A g 1022.3%
e e Strong growth in 2010
(X 2010 Revenue up by 22.3%

(US$ million)

20094
F R A R AR =
Profit for the year and net profit margin
C Kz W AR=
Net Profit Net profit margin
(BB%T) (%)
(US$ million)

15.4%

2009%F

20105

20105

17.4%

. 2010F @ M # E 1L &
4l R 12 /n38.4%

R ERE15.4%EE17.4%

o Profit improved significantly in 2010

Net profit up by 38.4%
Net profit margin up from 15.4% to 17.4%
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Eamings per share (EPS) and dividend per share (DPS)
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EPS DPS

(L) (1)

(US cents) (US cents)

20094 20105
BHEERFEE
Total assets and net assets
B ERBEE m rBEE B FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(B&%T) (B8%ET) (B&%mT)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
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AN B E
&R 2 F 1 h8.0%

RER B AFRR1.4120

Net profit improved
Earnings per share up by 8.0%

Final dividend of US1.41 cents per share

ERBEELNSLI A% RENVE EILHN71.5%
HEERINT.2%

AER N 2 BRI E PSSR RR AR 18 A0
FEERIN208.0%

Non-current assets increased by 84.1% and
current assets increased by 71.5%
Total assets increased by 78.2%

Significant increase in net profit together with
net proceeds from the global offering
Net assets increased by 208.0%
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the first annual report of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (‘Lansen” or the
“Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 since our
successful listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in May 2010.

Year 2010 was an important milestone in the history of Lansen.
The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 7 May 2010 with proceeds of approximately
HK$450 million (after the exercise of the over-allotment option).
The Group’s listing debut provided the Group with an enhanced
financial position and a solid foundation for future development.

Looking back on the course of 2010, the rheumatology market
grew more rapidly than the overall pharmaceutical market on
the back of robust economic growth in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the policies related to the medical reform in
favor of the rheumatology industry and the continuous expansion
of the market. With our well-established and reputable brand
image, the Group is well-positioned to benefit from the on-
going growth and development in the rheumatology industry.
Our revenue and profit in 2010 hit record levels as a result of the

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

g



Lo

ERBE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

TT L EFRIHIE R22.3% - BRI AR F12.8
BEEL REFR B RL43.6%  Fi1EFF
H10 2B 8 X0 W EFR K K38.4% -

FR-BRERVINFZES ([BHNE]HE
7 (BEREREEWE) ([PE]) wie-
HRBISRAREENEmE RN ARER
FOHEMNBE L RBRANTEZE XL
TTBRORE - BRRAIN_F—FTF+=
ABLBA REREBOEFEEERNK
BEEER FRNAER LMEF T EXE
BEgh o MERA A P B BEan BN FE L B AR IR B 86 B

g =

RRE A —BEERECEERNEESR
& A RETREN— R EER TR T A
EY BREVEEANEERERETRERL
BE-MRARESIEAEER BAHE B
BREEESNAERER RESEREEX
SR EERMESNEG BERBEAMERE
THESHER BRAAFERmELE- Z
BERHMERTHEEERTD [HE] W
S/ SEZYEE  RFEARDEENT
AANHEGR AT ([FAKIZ])20%M 4
REBSERBEREREN L RHEXR
Mt ARERZBE R -5 H SEEBN
BARERE FECREEMEHMAR iR
SHERMAMEME N EHE M ENEEE
=R BE

AEBZOEBIDEERERZRR AL
RIFREERZREIEREMSAEEL - %
BEERERMNEERRBIEREERR
HHEZHHER ESNEREFERATS
MEAX  AREMEZEBERSDE - F
AREERZEHENMNEE  miEERME
DL HPMB ARG R RBERAEL
MHE HMER NRERRER BEHEM
RgFEBEMS SEERISERBERR

BAE BT RAR A A
—E-ZTFEFER

measures and initiatives taken to improve our operation efficiency,
as well as the support and tireless efforts of our staff. For the
year ended 2010, our revenue was US$58.6 million, representing
an increase of 22.3% over the corresponding period last year.
Profit before tax was US$12.8 million, a 43.6% growth over
the corresponding period last year. The net profit after tax was
US$10.2 million, a 38.4% growth over the corresponding period
last year.

During the year, the National Development and Reform
Commission (the “NDRC”) issued the draft of the “Drug Price
Control Measures” (the “Measures”) for consultation, which set
strict guidelines on the drug pricing practice in the PRC including
operating expense ratio, profit ratio and the maximum mark-up
in the distribution channels. In December 2010, the NDRC also
issued the notice of lowering the retail price cap on selected
independent premier pricing pharmaceutical products among
17 categories of pharmaceuticals, primarily antibiotics and
cardiovascular drugs. However, none of Lansen’s pharmaceutical
products were included in this price control list.

In order to mitigate the potential impact of the Measures, Lansen
has decisively taken a series of proactive measures, including
identifying appropriate companies or pharmaceutical products
for acquisition or collaboration, speeding up the process of
introducing appropriate products through agency arrangements
and expanding our sales, so as to maximise profit and value for
shareholders. Meanwhile, we are actively involved in joint and
individual product development and research activities in order
to expand our product range to respond to the government’s
incentive measures on technological advancement. Since the
impact of the Measures on bulk pharmaceuticals is comparatively
smaller than that on downstream pharmaceutical products,
Lansen took the opportunity to acquire a 20% equity interest in
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”) during the year,
enabling us to gain more exposure to the upstream operation of
bulk pharmaceuticals for rheumatic specialty drugs. On the other
hand, the Group strengthened its ability to hedge against risks
by improving its internal management and control, lowering its
production and marketing costs and boosting the efficiency and
capability of the sales team.

Lansen continues to focus on its core business of autoimmune
rheumatic diseases to maintain its leading position in the disease
modifying anti-rheumatic drugs (“DMARDs”) market. The Group is
actively expanding and diversifying its product range to increase
its share in the DMARDs market by launching more products into
the market. Relying on its popularity, brand name and extensive
distribution network, the Group is also considering acquiring or
developing biological agents, steroids and anti-inflammatory and
analgesic drugs, aiming at strategically extending its coverage to
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other parts of the rheumatic drugs market. Moreover, the Group
has maintained its emphasis on the rheumatology market with its
focus on rheumatoid arthritis and systemic lupus erythematosus
which have higher incidence rates. Furthermore, we are also
focusing on the rheumatic segments of gout and fibromyalgia
syndrome which have higher prevalence in recent years and
other rheumatic disease related complication segments, such
as pulmonary hypertension and pulmonary fibrosis. Meanwhile,
with the experience we have obtained in the autoimmune
rheumatic diseases market, the Group will strategically expand
into the market for certain autoimmune diseases related markets,
including autoimmune related dermatological diseases (such
as psoriasis), autoimmune related orthopedic diseases (such
as osteoporosis and osteoarthritis) and autoimmune related
nephropathy diseases (such as nephrotic syndrome and lupus
nephritis). Besides, we are considering the acquisition of
companies or products of other specialties, such as gynecology
and pediatrics, making these areas additional drivers of the
Group’s future growth.
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Lansen attaches great importance and strives to fulfill its
corporate social responsibility within the industry. During the
year, the Group collaborated with the China Health Promotion
Foundation ( FEIfEER{R#EE S @ ) , the Division of Rheumatology
of the Chlnese Medical Doctor Association ( 1 B E Bl i 2 @& %
K RIEERT S & ) and the Division of Rheumatology of the Peking
Union Medical College Hospital to establish the “Cornerstone
Development Scheme of Chinese Rheumatologists Fund”( /1

EREERIEMELEET ) (the “Cornerstone Scheme”( [ %

HEFEI])), the “Chinese SLE Treatment and Research Group
Fund” (the “CSTAR”) and the “Zhang Naizheng Rheumatology
Development Foundation”, with an aim to rapidly increase
the number of rheumatic specialists and initiate new and
sophisticated research in the field. We believe these initiatives
have contributed to the development of the entire rheumatic
industry. In addition, the Group also collaborated with Anhui
Medical University to set up the “Xu Shuyun Scholarship” to
nurture a new generation of doctors. While actively pursuing
increased earnings, the Group also constantly keeps in mind its
corporate social responsibility.
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Looking forward to 2011, Lansen will seize opportunities arising
in the pharmaceutical market, to optimise and improve its product
mix and enhance its competitiveness. The Group will seize
growth opportunities while at the same time adopting a sensible
defensive risk profile. Domestic demand has become the major
momentum for economic growth following the implementation
of the twelfth five-year plan in 2011, which aims at stimulating
domestic consumption and investment. At the same time, 2011
represents a key turning point when a series of new reforms and
government policies are to be implemented in the pharmaceutical
industry. In this challenging environment, the pharmaceutical
industry will experience steady development and relatively rapid
growth is still expected. Lansen should still be able to maintain its
leadership in the sales of DMARDs.

The recent launch of a new type of rural cooperative medical
care system in some regions in the PRC to provide quality
medical care to a larger population has resulted in a strong and
stable demand for medical products. In particular, increased
subsidies and compensation are offered to cases of chronic and
special diseases such as rheumatoid arthritis, systemic lupus
erythematosus and anti-rejection treatment for organ transplants
which our products address. This will be a great opportunity for
Lansen to increase its market share. With the implementation of
centralised procurement of essential drugs and the subsidy for
primary medical and healthcare institutions, this further enhance
the sales and position of the Group’s products which have been
accepted into the National Essential Drug List tenders.

On 7 March 2011, the NDRC issued the notice of adjustment
on the maximum retail price of certain pharmaceuticals related
to antibiotics and cardiovascular drugs, which reaffirmed the
implementation of the price management reform policies. Thus
far, the Company’s products have not been affected and therefore
are not subject to any price adjustments. Lansen will continue
to closely monitor any further development of the Measures
and actively take proactive measures to address any possible
adverse impacts that the medical reform policies may bring. The
Measures, if fully implemented, may have substantial impact on
all pharmaceutical companies in the short run. This may provide
Lansen with more opportunities to identify appropriate companies
or drugs for acquisition and collaboration. To develop and fortify
our leading position in the DMARDs market, penetrate into other
segments of the rheumatic drugs market and strategically enter
into the market of drugs for other immune diseases and the
potential market for other specialty pharmaceutical products,
the Group will continue to seek opportunities to expedite the
acquisition of target companies and introduce products with
promising prospects.
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Lansen will continue to strengthen the capability of its sales force
and progressively recruit additional staff. The Group will also
cooperate with relevant medical associations and rheumatology
specialists to nurture more rheumatic specialists, so as to achieve
mutual and solid development in the rheumatology industry. The
Group will also proactively launch educational programmes for
patients and enlarge its market share in the second- and third-
tier markets. The Group will also take measures to increase sales
and maximise profits by tightening control over costs and improve
operational efficiency.

In addition, Lansen will continue to invest in expanding its
research and development capability and production capacity.
The Group plans to invest approximately US$1.4 million for
the construction of a new quality control and research and
development centre, to strengthen quality control and to meet
any potential new standards imposed by the government. The
Group will also speed up the launch of competitive and profitable
autoimmune rheumatic pharmaceuticals. Meanwhile, the Group
will expand the production facilities for Pafulin and the production
line for bulk pharmaceuticals to optimise its production and
management efficiency in order to meet the strong demand for
these products.
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Lansen is also planning to build a white peony plantation in
Bozhou, Anhui Province, the PRC, the origin of the raw material
for Pafulin, in order to establish a complete Pafulin product value
chain, to set industrial standards and to further strengthen the
brand image and its leading technological position. This plan will
also enable the Group to enjoy preferential tax treatment offered
to agricultural projects in the PRC and generate strong revenue
while stabilising raw materials price.

Looking forward, the Group is very confident about creating
momentum in the long run and delivering even more solid
results to our shareholders. On behalf of the Board, | take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude towards the parties
involved in our listing, towards our shareholders for their on-going
support and last but not least, to our dedicated management and
staff for their contribution and tireless efforts.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong,15 March 2011
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2010, the economic growth in the PRC continued to
be robust. Demand for pharmaceuticals have been surging on
the back of the favourable external environment led by a series
of policies related to the medical reform in the pharmaceutical
industry. Meanwhile, with the national medical reform policies
gradually implemented, and the commitment of RMB850 billion for
such reforms, domestic supply and demand for pharmaceuticals
have been growing steadily. Together with this convergence in the
pharmaceutical industry, the overall efficiency of the industry has
been gradually improved. The rheumatology market continues to
grow at a faster pace than the overall pharmaceutical market.

With an established strong brand image, the Group is well
positioned to benefit from the on-going growth and development
in the rheumatology industry. The Group continues to focus on
the rheumatology market and is working to achieve product
diversification through investments, mergers and acquisitions,
cooperation, agency arrangements and franchise purchases.
The Group also aims to maximise shareholders’ returns and
strengthen the Group’s ability to hedge against risks by improving
its internal management and control, lowering production and
marketing costs and boosting the efficiency and capability of
the sales team. Therefore, it is well prepared to face any impact
brought about by the “Measures” once they are implemented.
During the year, the Group also completed the acquisition of
a 20% equity interest in Starry, which enabled us to gain more
exposure in the upstream operation of bulk pharmaceuticals for
rheumatology in preparation for building a complete product value
chain.

Lansen also has effectively minimise the impact of soaring raw
material prices. During 2010, the price of Chinese herbs has
experienced significant growth. To minimise this impact, the
Group managed to mobilise sufficient funds to pre-emptively
stock up inventories. Leveraging on economies of scale, the
Group was also able to improve its production and operation
efficiency. We believe, following the expected retreat in raw
material prices and along with the continuous development in our
operation, the experience we have accumulated should be an
added advantage and will create long-term benefits for the Group.
We should also be able to respond better to potential change in
raw material prices in the future.
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Revenue and profits of the Group for 2010 hit record highs, which
in return maximised our shareholders’ value. In addition to the
support and tireless efforts of our management and staff, we
believe the growth is attributable to the following:

Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals,
the core business of the Group, experienced continuous
growth in sales. During 2010, the sales of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceuticals amounted to US$40.6
million, which contributed to 69.2% of the total sales of the Group
and represented a 22.6% growth over the corresponding period
last year. The growth of the PRC rheumatic drugs market is still
relatively faster than the overall pharmaceutical market. Having
engaged in the rheumatic market for years and by leveraging on
its brand, the Group is able to enjoy the benefits resulting from
market expansion.

Pafulin and Tuoshu, the core products of the Group, recorded
satisfactory growth in sales. Given the sharp increase in the
amount and number of people covered by medical insurance,
the Group has actively promoted the sales of Pafulin and Tuoshu
(both products are included in the National Medical Insurance
Catalogue (X B {R B %)) in the second- and third-tier
cities while cooperating with the Division of Rheumatology of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association and the China Health
Promotion Foundation to organise the Cornerstone Scheme. The
scheme is a continual education programme aimed at nurturing
leading rheumatic doctors in the second- and third-tier cities.
This activity contributed to Pafulin’s rapid sales growth. Sales
of US$22.9 million were recorded during 2010, resulting in a
26.2% increase compared with the same period last year. The
Group continues to adopt a highly competitive pricing strategy for
Tuoshu. As a step forward to promote the development of medical
care for lupus erythematosus in the PRC, the Group collaborated
with the Division of Rheumatology of the Peking Union Medical
College Hospital and the China Health Promotion Foundation to
set up the CSTAR. In addition, with more promotion efforts at
various academic conferences, the market for Tuoshu continues
to expand. During 2010, the sales of Tuoshu were US$10.3
million, representing a growth of 27.0% over the corresponding
period last year. The stable growth of these two major products
has made a significant contribution to the results of the Group.
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Mycophenolate Mofetil (“MMF”), a new agency product,
was launched successfully. With its highly efficient and unique
immunosuppressive effect and harmless to liver and kidneys,
MMF is used in the treatment of systemic lupus erythematosus
and lupus related kidney diseases and is also applicable to the
treatment of various autoimmune rheumatic diseases and other
kidney diseases, ensuring broad market prospects. The Group
officially launched the marketing programme during the Annual
National Rheumatology Conference held in May. Sales of US$0.5
million were recorded during the year. This represents the support
of the rheumatology community for the Group and the market’s
recognition of MMF. We believe that MMF will make an important
contribution to the sales and profit of the Group in the future.

The non-core business recorded steady sales growth.
Leveraging on the well-established distribution channels within
the Yangtze River Delta, the Group expanded its distribution to
lower-tier markets, in which sales are growing at a faster pace.
Meanwhile, many of the Group’s drugs won tenders conducted
for the National Essential Drug List in Zhejiang Province, through
which the Group has actively expanded its sales in the Province.
All these developments contributed to the 21.6% increase in the
sales of non-core drugs in 2010 with sales amounting to US$18.0
million, which accounted for 30.8% of the Group’s sales.

The above factors contributed to the solid results of the Group
during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group achieved
excellent results and recorded a revenue of US$58.6 million,
representing an increase of US$10.7 million, or 22.3%, as
compared to last year. The profit attributable to owners of the
Company was US$10.2 million, representing an increase of
US$2.8 million, or 38.4%, as compared to last year.

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$58.6 million (2009: US$47.9
million) for the year ended 31 December 2010, representing
an increase of 22.3% over last year. For the year ended 31
December 2010, revenue from rheumatic specialty prescription
western pharmaceuticals amounted to US$40.6 million (2009:
US$33.1 million), representing an increase of 22.6% over last
year, while revenue from other pharmaceuticals amounted to
US$18.0 million (2009: US$14.8 million), representing an increase
of 21.6% over last year.

The increase in the Group’s revenue during the year was mainly
attributable to the stable growth in income from its two core
rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, Pafulin
and Tuoshu, as well as the sustained development of its non-core
business. Supported by the Chinese government’s increasing
efforts to improve the quality of public healthcare, the Group
further expanded its sales and distribution network in the second-
and third-tier cities and cooperated with medical associations to
increase the training for rheumatic professionals. This resulted in
the stable growth for the Group’s rheumatic specialty prescription
products. With the launch of the Essential Drug List by the
Chinese government and leveraging on the well-established
distribution channels in the well-off Yangtze River Delta region, the
Group’s non-core business had achieved continuous growth.
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Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s cost of
sales was US$20.2 million (2009: US$15.5 million), representing
an increase of 30.2% over last year. The increase was mainly
attributable to increased costs in raw material, packaging, direct
labour and depreciation of products resulting from the growth in
our capacity and sales.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
a gross profit of US$38.4 million (2009: US$32.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 18.5% over last year.
The increase was mainly driven by the growth in sales of our
rheumatic specialty prescription pharmaceuticals which command
a higher gross profit margin.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the overall gross profit
margin of the Group was 65.6% (2009: 67.7%), representing a
decrease of approximately 2.1% over last year. The high level of
overall gross profit margin was mainly attributable to increased
sales income from rheumatic specialty prescription western
pharmaceuticals, Pafulin and Tuoshu, during the year. The overall
gross profit margin of rheumatic specialty prescription western
pharmaceuticals was stable. The decrease in overall gross profit
margin was mainly attributable to the increase in raw material
prices of other pharmaceuticals.

Other Income

Other income, primarily included government grants and
interest income from bank deposit, amounted to US$2.0 million
(2009: US$0.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2010,
representing an increase of 140.5% over last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to increased grants from local government
as recognition of the Group’s performance.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of i)
promotion costs through organising seminars, conferences
and related expenses; ii) staff costs; and iii) rental expenses.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to US$20.4 million (2009: US$18.1 million),
representing an increase of 12.6% over last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the expansion in operation scale and
business.

The proportion of selling and distribution expenses to total
revenue of the Group declined from 37.9% in 2009 to 34.9%
in 2010. The decrease was mainly attributable to the growth in
operation efficiency.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to US$7.0 million (2009: US$5.5 million),
representing an increase of 26.6% over last year. The increase
was approximately partly attributable to the one-off listing related
expenses of approximately US$0.6 million incurred for our listing
during May 2010 and the expansion in operation scale.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted
to US$0.4 million (2009: US$0.7 million), representing a decrease
of 41.8% over last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the average outstanding bank borrowings for
the year and the overall decrease in effective interest rates of our
borrowings.
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Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to US$2.6 million, representing an increase of
68.9% as compared to US$1.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2009. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in earnings; (i) the gradual increase in the preferential
tax rates by certain subsidiaries of the Group following the
implementation of the new Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC;
and (i) the increase in non-deductible expenses. As a result, the
Group’s effective income tax rate increased from 17.1% in 2009
to 20.1% in 2010.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 grew by 38.4% or US$2.8 million to
US$10.2 million as compared to US$7.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2009.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group’s financial position continued to be strong. As at 31
December 2010, net current assets and current ratio of the Group
were approximately US$37.8 million (2009: US$6.9 million) and
4.0 (2009: 1.3) respectively.

The inventories turnover days increased to 90 days (2009: 66
days). The increase in inventories turnover days was primarily
attributable to the flexible inventories management policies
adopted by the Group to reduce the impact of changes in the
prices of Chinese herbal medicine.

The trade receivables turnover days increased to 93 days (2009:
84 days), as a result of higher revenue in the fourth quarter in
2010.

The trade payables turnover days decreased to 81 days (2009: 93
days). The decrease in trade payables turnover days was mainly
attributable to the Group’s efforts to reduce the credit period for
settlement with suppliers in return for more competitive prices to
cope with the general increase in the price of raw materials in the
PRC.
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As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$14.8 million. The Group’s borrowings as at 31
December 2010 amounted to US$10.7 million, of which US$3.3
million is repayable within 1 year and US$7.4 million is repayable
after 1 year but within 5 years.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s net gearing ratio was nil
(2009: 48.2%), calculated by net debt (total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances) as at 31 December 2010 over total
equity.

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arises.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2010, certain bank deposits, building and
plant, and land use rights in an aggregate carrying amount of
US$4.1 million (2009: US$12.4 million) were pledged to secure
banking facilities and bank borrowings.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s capital expenditure
contracted but not provided in the financial statements in relation
to construction and purchase of equipment, and development
of intellectual property rights amounted to US$0.4 million (2009:
US$0.4 million) and US$1.2 million (2009: US$0.9 million)
respectively.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 15 November 2010, Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement with an independent third party to
purchase a 20% equity interest in Starry for a consideration of
RMB160 million (equivalent to approximately US$24 million). The
above transaction was completed on 26 November 2010 and as
a result of which the Company is interested in 20% of the equity
interest in Starry, and Starry is treated as an associate of the
Company.

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering (“IPO”)

On 7 May 2010, the Company was successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange. The IPO was well received by investors through
both the international placing and the Hong Kong public offer. The
total net proceeds received by the Company from the IPO (after
netting of share issue expenses) was approximately HK$408.3
million (equivalent to approximately US$52.5 million).

The proceeds have been partially applied during the period from
the listing date to 31 December 2010, the use of which was
consistent with the intended use as disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 27 April 2010 (the “Prospectus”), namely
for product development and research, funding the acquisition
of pharmaceutical companies and/or purchase of production
technologies or product approvals, improving production capacity,
expansion of sales and distribution network and general working
capital.

Human Resources

The Group had over 600 employees as at 31 December 2010.
Salaries of employees have been maintained at a competitive level
and are reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labour
market and economic situation.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or disruptions to its operations due to labour
disputes nor has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Jun (RE), age 40, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for
the overall business strategy and corporate development of our
Group. Mr. Xu has been responsible for the overall management
of our Group. Mr. Xu has over 18 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry through his working experience in China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (formerly
Sanjiu Medical and Pharmaceutical Company Limited) and its
subsidiaries (the “Shenzhen Sanjiu Group”) since 1992. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Xu held various managerial positions,
including sales manager, head of sales department and deputy
general manager in a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu
Group from 1992 to 2001. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor of science
degree in economics from the Renmin University of China (
ARKE)in 1992 and an executive master degree in business
administration from the China Europe International Business
School in 2008.

Mr. LIU Xiao Dong ( 8|83 ), age 40, is an executive Director of
our Company and the senior vice president of our Group in charge
of operations management. Mr. Liu joined our Group at the end
of 2001. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu had been deputy head
of the finance department and director of the auditing office of a
company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1992 to 2001.
Mr. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry through his working experience in Shenzhen Sanjiu Group
since 1992. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics
from Wuhan University (/& K2 ) in 1992.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 71, is a non-executive Director
and chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt is the deputy chairman
and a non-executive director of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH”), a company listed on the London Stock Exchange.
Mr. Hunt was formerly managing director of Aliant Capital, an
investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US citizen, spent
24 years with Bank of America in international management and
lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president and area
general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong. Mr.
Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong
Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and from
1989 to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Advisory Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee
of the American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation.
Mr. Hunt is also a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor
of arts degree from Duke University in 1961 and a master’s
degree in international affairs from Columbia University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi (Z &), age 53, is a non-executive Director
and deputy chairman of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH
Group in January 2010 and is the chief executive officer of CIH.
Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the banking industry and
held various senior management positions with major financial
institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has been a director
of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the CIH Group,
Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive officer
of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and half years and
a director of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to
that, Mr. Lee was the managing director and China senior country
officer of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong
Kong Management Committee of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr.
Lee obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Harvard University in 1984.

Mr. TANG Jun (5 &), age 51, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been
working in the business development department, responsible
for exploring investment opportunities in the pharmaceutical
industries for our Group. Currently, Mr. Tang is the vice president
and head of business development of the CIH Group. Mr. Tang
is also acting as chairman for Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah”), Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) and Ningbo Lansen
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, and a director of Xiao Haotian
Bio-Engineering Technology Co. Ltd. (“Xiao Haotian”). Mr. Tang
obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from Hangzhou
University (M X2) in 1982, a master of philosophy degree
from Beijing Normal University (4t ZEI# A2 ) in 1986 and a
licentiate degree in law from Lapland University, Finland in 1993.

Ms. TAO Fang Fang (B35 3 ), age 40, is a non-executive
Director of our Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007
and is also acting as a director of Xian Haotian. Ms. Tao became
a professional accountant and a registered accountant in 1996
and 1998 respectively. Before being promoted to the position
of director of finance department of a leading pharmaceutical
group in China, Ms. Tao worked as financial controller for a
manufacturing company and financial manager for a marketing
and sales company under the control of that group. Ms. Tao
graduated from the department of accounting of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics ( /8B 48 A2 ) in 1992.
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Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca (E{f¥,), age 52, is a non-
executive Director of our Company, company secretary of CIH,
vice president and head of asset management of the CIH Group
responsible for the management of the operations of the CIH
Group’s invested projects and is also acting as chairman of
Xian Haotian and its subsidiaries. Ms. Yip is a fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) since
1994, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since 1991, and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW”) since 2008. Ms.
Yip is also an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators since 1988 and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining the CIH Group
in February 1994, Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor and tax
consultant for 7 years. Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College
where she obtained a diploma in business administration and
accounting in 1981 and a honours diploma in accounting in 1983.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael (B2 4E), age 59, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan
has over 30 years of external audit, IT audit, training, accounting
and finance, company secretarial and corporate administration,
MIS management, internal audit, information security, risk
management and compliance experience. Mr. Chan is a fellow
of the HKICPA and The Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and a fellow and specialist in information technology
of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate or member of the
following professional bodies: The Hong Kong Computer Society,
Hong Kong Securities Institute, and the Life Management
Institute. He is also a certified information systems auditor with
the Information Systems Audit and Control Association and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the
chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior adviser
of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG
Life Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance
Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and his last position was general
manager, compliance. He was the head of internal audit of Dao
Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head
of compliance in Greater China, managing director of DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005,
the director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the
head of group compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Limited from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan
graduated with a higher diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond (38 ), age 62, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang has
been in the executive search field since 1985 when he joined the
Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates. Mr. Tang was
formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds Associates
until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr. Tang was
educated in the United States at Tufts University in Boston,
Massachusetts where he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in
1972; and he graduated with a master’s degree in public health
from the Yale University School of Medicine in New Haven,
Connecticut in 1975. Mr. Tang has served as a member of non-
governmental organisations such as the Hong Kong Council of
Academic Accreditation and Vocational Qualifications.

Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 61, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher has
over 30 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Horlacher started his pharmaceutical career with Roche Australia
in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig Pharma Asia Pacific
(“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008. Mr. Horlacher was the
chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008
and was responsible for its operations servicing more than 125
international research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in
the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive
officer of Zuellig Pharma in 2008. Mr. Horlacher is currently a non-
executive director of Pharma Industries Holdings Limited which
has operations in the Philippines and Thailand. From 2005 to
2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of Invida Group
Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of Australian
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher
was the Asia representative on the board of directors of the
International Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002
to 2008. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana Institute
in Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Hong Wei (#Z1{&), age 38, is the senior vice president
of sales and general manager of Shenzhen Lansen responsible for
the marketing and management of the Group. Mr. Xie joined our
Group in December 2001 and has over 16 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Xie had been the manager and sales director of the sales and
marketing department of a company within the Shenzhen Sanijiu
Group from 1994 to 2001. Mr. Xie obtained a bachelor’s degree
in medical library and information science from Norman Bethune
University of Medical Science ( Ak B ERIKXZ) in 1994,

Mr. MUI Chi Hung (#§%&%f) , age 44, is the company secretary,
chief financial officer and authorised representative of our
Company. Mr. Mui has over 19 years of experience in financing,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Mui held various senior positions in different listed groups and
international accounting firms, including PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Far East Consortium Group and Rising Development Group,
where he spent 7 years serving as a financial controller,
company secretary and executive director. Mr. Mui obtained
his master’s degree in Professional Accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and his bachelor’s degree
in Management majoring in Accounting from the University of
Lethbridge in Canada in 1992. Mr. Mui is currently a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and HKICPA.

Ms. POON Lei Yung (EFI &), age 45, is the senior vice
president of our Group. Ms. Poon joined the CIH Group in
December 1997 and had worked in the business development
and finance departments of the CIH Group and holds several
directorships in the subsidiaries of our Group. Prior to joining the
CIH Group, Ms. Poon was the assistant to president at Bessemer
Asia Limited, a subsidiary of a U.S. based company, Bessemer
Holdings LLC. Ms. Poon has over 18 years of experience with
international firms that are specialised in direct investments in
China, and has worked in Hong Kong, Australia and China. She
obtained her master’s degree in business administration from the
University of South Australia in 2000.
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Mr. LIANG Yi (&), age 46, is the chief technology officer
of the Group in charge of research and development, and
technology. Mr. Liang joined our Group in December 2001 and
has over 13 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liang was employed by a company
within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1998 to 2001. Mr. Liang
obtained his master’s degree in pharmacy from Kunming Medical
University ( 287 8 Z2Ft ) in 1997.

Mr. ZHOU Rong (A ), age 41, is the chief logistics officer of
the Group, a director of Ningbo Liwah and the general manager of
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited (“Liwah Zhiti”)
in charge of logistic related matters of the Group and operation
and management of Liwah Zhiti. Mr. Zhou joined our Group in
December 2001 and has over 19 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhou
was employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group
from 1991 to 2001. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree
in heating, ventilation and air-conditioning engineering from
Shenyang Architectural and Civil Engineering Institute (35 &2 £
TEZE)in 1991.

Mr. ZHANG Xin Ming (R $#183), age 37, is the chief OTC
business officer of the Group and deputy general manager
of Ningbo Liwah in charge of the OTC business of the Group
and operation and management of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Zhang
joined our Group in December 2001 and has over 14 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhang had been the manager of a company within the
Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1996 to 2001. Mr. Zhang obtained
his bachelor’s degree in pharmacy from the West China University
of Medical Sciences (EFEERIKE) in 1996.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the
public listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 21 April 2010.

Details of the Group Reorganisation are fully explained in the
paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” of the Prospectus.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
with effect from 7 May 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 51.

A special dividend of US1.80 cents per share amounting to
US$5,390,000 was paid to the then shareholders prior to the
listing of the Company.

The Board recommends a final dividend of US1.41 cents per
share, totalling approximately US$5,852,000, for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 to the Company’s shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 28 April 2011, subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The shares of the Company have been successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 7 May 2010. The total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 7 May 2010 was
400,000,000 shares.

On 28 May 2010, the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the
Prospectus) was fully exercised, 15,000,000 shares (the “Over-
allotment Shares”) were issued and allotted by the Company.
The total number of issued shares of the Company increased
to 415,000,000 shares immediately after the issue of the Over-
allotment Shares.

As at 31 December 2010 and the date of this report, the total
number of issued shares of the Company was 415,000,000
shares.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the shares of the Company since the
shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 7 May 2010 to 31 December 2010.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately US$67,678,000,
of which approximately US$5,852,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(appointed on 10 February 2011)
Mr. Robert Peter Thian
(resigned on 10 February 2011)

In accordance with the article 112 of the Company’s articles of
association, all Directors of the Company will retire by rotation
and, be eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Dealing in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 7 May 2010. At 31 December 2010, the interests
and short positions of the Directors of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

L= NN

BFENEE&T EEITRAEN
ZERHE Bk
Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Director Capacity shares held the Company
RELE ErEEm A (MiEE) 48,830,000 11.77%
Mr. Xu Jun Beneficiary of a trust (note) (&)

(Long position)
BlERESE ErEXm A (FisE) 48,830,000 11.77%
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong Beneficiary of a trust (note) (&)

(Long position)
FEBEESE EnEAA 300,000 0.07%
Mr. Lee Jin Vi Beneficial owner (&)

(Long position)
Stephen Burnau Hunt%t 4 E=HAA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (&)

(Long position)

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Note: Ever Sall, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the benefit of certain

management personnel and employees of the Group and/or their respective
family and/or charity organisation (“the Management Trust”). Mr. Xu Jun and Mr.
Liu Xiao Dong, who are beneficiaries of the Management Trust, are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Ever Sail.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31
December 2010 which was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors of the Company, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company.

BAR AT
BFENERT ERTRAN
RER &M P g4 EBRHA Bk
Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company
BRERBELEREE (TE)BERAT 1 Enfn 209,820,000 50.56%
(T REIBREE (RE)]) Beneficial interest (tF7)
Cathay International Pharma Manufacture (Long position)
and Distribution (China) Limited
(“Cl Pharma China”)
EHREREEEMRMEEZFER AR 1 R EEER 209,820,000 50.56%
Cathay International Changchun Interest of a controlled (47%)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIC”)
BEZREREYRM R EE (hE)BRAF 1 R EEER 209,820,000 50.56%
(T REIBR AR R EEE (RE) ) Interest of a controlled (tF7)
Cathay International Biotechnology & corporation (Long position)
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
(“Cl Biotech & Pharma China”)
BRERBEARAR ((HAREKEE]) 1 R EEER 209,820,000 50.56%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Interest of a controlled (tF7)
Limited (“CIP”) corporation (Long position)
EZEREYRMARAF 1 R EEER 209,820,000 50.56%
(T REIBR £ ) Interest of a controlled (tF7)

Cathay International Biotech Company
Limited (“CIB”)

corporation (Long position)

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 XEiE R 209,820,000 50.56%
(“CIH") Interest of a controlled (tF7)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 S EEER 209,820,000 50.56%
Interest of a controlled (tF7)
corporation (Long position)
Wu Zhen Tao 3 PRETANAR 209,820,000 50.56%
FEEHEA (17%)
Founder of discretionary (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
Py 4 R EEER 48,830,000 11.77%
Cheng Hoo Interest of a controlled (tF7)
corporation (Long position)
Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited 4 EnEn 48,830,000 11.77%
Beneficial interest (tF7)
(Long position)
KMARRA 4 ZiEA 48,830,000 11.77%
Ever Sail Limited Trustee (tF7)

BAEBEIERERAAR
—E-ZTFEFER

(Long position)



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

GEE

M ZEROMBEFEREEE (FE) A HFEEERE
Z (hE)ARCICHER18%ER K i B REREM K
MR %z (B FEH82% s o CICRIMBIZRE MR A
PR R B2 (R ) BER100% 5 - BB A9
Rt R #E (PE) A MEEREREEZEREE M
BREEBEEDHEREBEENRT2EHE &
EHCIHEREEA - Ak CIC - BIFREIFR £ YRl &
Gz (hE) BEZEREE BEREREDEN R
CHE AR BB R SR AR -

©@ CIH#)60.99%#E 7 F1 Cathay International Enterprises
Limited#¥ A o A It - Cathay International Enterprises
Limited# 1% 2 Bl R BEBR 26 %2 (R &) AT+ B BUIR 19
PG

€] Cathay International Enterprises Limitedf) 2 &2 2%
1T AN EHWu Zhen Tao%t 4 AWu Zhen Tao%t 4 & H
KAk B 8 F =K 891558 (TWURR AE5E]) #%
B EAWUER R AZFER A A - Wu Zhen Tao%t £
118 A Cathay International Enterprises Limitedff
RAENRORES #E -

(4) Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited#y 2 282 21T A B
KMAERARMEREEEGEANITEAMEA M
XMBRARHBRAE2ERSE - At BxA4E
118 B Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited B & & 1%
DREE R -

BENFTHEBEEN BETAAL (ARQRAE
BRI EERZFEN EXEETREG - HE
B REEEZESERAR] —&)RARQF]
R& 19 sk AR B8 % 10 o k5 1R 1 B 5 M HR S 0
F3BIEATURGEHNERIAR -

ZEBUFHITES

ARFEREBEETBHERIMERAARES
EHRAEIBGERSEBRBEIIFNTES
FHEBYEZFERR - ARARRAE
BYFRTEETHRBIAL

Notes:

(1) These Shares are held by CI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as
to 100% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn
wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly owned
by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH are
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

2) CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by Cathay International Enterprises
Limited. Therefore, Cathay International Enterprises Limited is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by CI Pharma China.

) The entire issued share capital of Cathay International Enterprises Limited is
held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao
and members of his family (“Wu Family Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of
the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Cathay
International Enterprises Limited.

(4) The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited is held by Ever
Sail Limited acting as the trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly
owned by Mr. Cheng Hoo. Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors
of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2010, our largest customer accounted for 13.6% of turnover
(2009: 14.8%). The five largest customers remain the same as
2009, although their combined contribution to total sales has
decreased slightly from 33.8% to 31.8% in the current year.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 36.7% (2009: 45.5%)
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 12.8% (2009: 14.3%).

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate basis
to existing shareholders.



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

REHNARERE

RABREAH REARANERSZARE
BERARRESHAA ARBEHER LM
HAIFES.08IFFT R EMN A RITIRE -

MBEHRE

AEBEXENEEERABZHERNE128
EO

% B Em

FR-BARBESFET(IBEERE])
ARAoHBEHET R_F—FF+—A8
CHRAEMEEEY RS AMEST
BRRAR([ZEREEDETEBEM ALK
NIERZRRAE WOEFEHTML
ERZEZERARAREM BT —F
FH—ANBEERK-

ARABE_T—FE+-A=t+—AL%F
ErRBRRNATEEEER

EEBRRBFAE LHREE —THRER &
ERVAEEEE RANYNCIE S 2 41

RREFS
BMEBHEZERARLQA

FE
Stephen Burnau Hunt

BB
—E——F=A+HEHH

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities is
set out on page 128.

AUDITOR

During the year, due to a merger of the businesses of Grant
Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB & Co, and BDO Limited
(“BDQO”") to practise in the name of BDO as announced on 26
November 2010, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as
auditor of the Company effective from 8 December 2010.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010 were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
15 March 2011
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The Company and the Board are devoted to achieve and
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance as the
Board believes that effective corporate governance practices are
fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly,
the Company has adopted sound corporate governance
principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal
control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

During the period commencing 7 May 2010 and ending 31
December 2010, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions,
oversees the operations and monitors the financial performance
of the Group. The management manages the businesses of the
Group within the delegated power and authority given by the
Board.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
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As at 31 December 2010 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of two executive Directors, five non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors fulfilled the minimum
requirement of the Listing Rules throughout the period from the
listing of the Company’s shares on 7 May 2010 to 31 December
2010. A description of the Directors is set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 24
to 29 and on the Company’s website.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board must
be satisfied that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining the
independence of Directors, the Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules and considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors as independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board,
steering the Board to formulate overall strategies and business
development plans, ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete
and reliable information by each Director and the receipt of
reasonable explanations for the issues raised in the Board
meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible for managing
the business of the Company and implementing policies, business
objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and is accountable
to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The senior
management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

=



L

EREBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ZE ERNER

ARRMERAAFH - ELXRTHES
WEF EFRZENEFNES (THAEME
R ERRBESSHIENE) AN ERE
BREERRBFASRELAERERSEE-
REERRBFREL =0—0NEE (25
TR)BARERTINARREE-

ESEREREEENEE

B E < Dt E(1) Robert Peter Thianst 4 BE (T
BUENTES ERZESKNERFIHEE
efkg B-Z——F-_A+tHRELR: QF
fEFritz Heinrich Horlacherst & &8 7 JEH 1T
EE - EZZEeRERTHEZEEXNE A
ZE——F AT HRBER: QREERLER
FRAAWE VBBERRERKR BT —
TFNAZTRBEREN: RGZEEEH T
ERBARWE UBKBERRERKXR BZF
——F A+ N\BBEK-

EEEEE

ExeRYEYeR BFEIMR - -RNEH
VBT ARENRREEEENAKEE
BRESHLEREHAESREHEN -EEF
REBLENEARE EFAERERANE
ENERNRBIEXER-

BAEBEIERERAR
—E-ZTFEFER

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal procedure
for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. Any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for reappointment
at the next general meeting after appointment. At every annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors, including the chairman,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Board has approved (1) the resignation of Mr. Robert Peter
Thian as an independent non-executive Director, member of the
audit committee and member of the remuneration committee,
effective from 10 February 2011; (2) the appointment of Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher as an independent non-executive Director,
member of the audit committee and member of the remuneration
committee, effective from 10 February 2011; (3) the resignation
of Mr. Chan Sheung Chi as the company secretary, chief
financial officer and authorised representative, effective from 25
September 2010; and (4) the appointment of Mr. Mui Chi Hung
as the company secretary, chief financial officer and authorised
representative, effective from 18 February 2011.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a
year. Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of
the Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
regarding the activities and development in the businesses of
the Group. The Directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice at all times whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The Board held four meetings during the period from the listing of
the Company’s shares on 7 May 2010 to 31 December 2010 with
the attendance of each Director as follows:

HESBRRE
BITEERE =
Number of
meetings
attended/

Number of Attendance
2= Directors meetings held rate
BITES . Executive Directors:

BRERE (7TBAAH) Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 100%
RIER A& Mr. Liu Xiao Dong 4/4 100%
FHITES . Non-executive Directors:

Stephen Burnau Hunt%c 4 (£/Z)  Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 4/4 100%
TEBLEE(FEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 4/4 100%
B Mr. Tang Jun 4/4 100%
s 2t Ms. Tao Fang Fang 4/4 100%
L TB= e Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 4/4 100%
BIYFHITES Independent non-executive Directors:

BRECIE 5E & Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 4/4 100%
BO AR S 5 A Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 4/4 100%
Robert Peter Thian’t 4 Mr. Robert Peter Thian 2/4 50%

(RZE——F AT H#MT) (resigned on 10 February 2011)

REEENEREEMT EFHELRER
THXRESEHEZBARESHAN DN
SRERSEZSRREMMEX M - EMEH
mE ERERNENBERT EF2FER
THRPHBEM - BRARRNERRAMRIMETN
ZEBRN EREFREL X5 RHHR
EEgRENHIENTAEMBEREH

BREEAEANES BARBBRERNE
BREREHEFT TR ARREEZEARK
MEBR MR-

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will
be given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three
days prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are
given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances. Except for those circumstances permitted by
the articles of association of the Company, a Director who has a
material interest in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any
other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for consideration,
will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and such
Director is not counted as quorum.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the executive committee. Please see below for
the composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each
committee shall provide their recommendations to the Board
based on their respective terms of reference. The decisions of the
Board on such recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise
stated in the terms of reference of these committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive
Directors. Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael currently serves as the
chairman of the audit committee.

The Board has established the audit committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and
responsibilities of the audit committee include the following:

- oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
addressing any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and

° developing and implementing policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply non-
audit services;

- monitor the integrity of financial statements and reports
of the Group and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein; and

- review the effectiveness of the financial reporting and
internal control systems of the Group.
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The audit committee held three meetings from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2010 with the attendance of each member as

HiE BREEQRTTZREH MEMK

BRHEBRAT: follows:

HESBRRE
BITERIE =

Number of

meetings

attended/
Name of audit Number of Attendance
EREEENERS committee members meetings held rate
BRECIESLE (F/E) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
FEBLEE Mr. Lee Jin Vi 3/3 100%
Bkt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 3/3 100%
BORE S S A& Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Robert Peter Thiant 4 Mr. Robert Peter Thian 2/3 66.7%

(R=ZZ——F_-_A+HEMT)

BEMAME
HifE BERZBEE

—E-TEF-A=f—AL

(resigned on 10 February 2011)

audit committee had:

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010, the

- BESMEREEN N EIEE N R B BIA -

RestRAIRGREETHARENTE
ARERERNER:

80 5 5B 4 T 1 3 T 2 T R
B3 R BB M0 T (E ) B R IR G
2

WA R BUBIZ B N AN AL B AT &
BARSOARBBE_T—TFA
=T BLENEA KR B A (DR 75 e
FETERRED] K (i)E B L m R A
WEMRE: &

MEFSRHEEBEZS ZRBEEM
HERENEEDEGMITERRER
VEERGHMEBMERAT -

discussed with the external auditor and the management
on the audit plan and the impact on the Group in respect of
the amendments to the accounting principles and standards
and the development of corporate governance;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and recommended the Board on the
appointment of the external auditor;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process and met with
the external auditor for reviewing (i) the Company’s interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2010, (ii) financial
and accounting policies and practices, and (iii) relevant
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules; and

- recommended the Board on the change of auditor from
Grant Thornton Hong Kong to BDO Limited.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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RAREE ARAICHIEMAERLEER
(B R 2EMRAGREE ULERERE
M) AT ERF U EREELD
rERRENRRT G FEMETHSEE
iR WREFESHEANREENEANR
BE BN ABRERAREEELBEETT
R EHAHEANEERS E’JXW HAED
ERRET LEMT R 2R AERETHE A
K= (Em) -

REFEAR BEREECRAERZESMEMRE
RER - EBER A BPE IR R AR RO R ﬁ-?
H-ZEBELRTER IwmALHE
RAUBANBRIERIZXEZTEEMN- ﬁEAFﬁ
RHMNENERERNGHER TEBEZERE
ENHT - %%Afmmfﬁﬁlﬁ’ﬂi%ﬁ&%ﬁ
EmE RiTABEERRREERFERE
IKHE %%A%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁATﬂﬂf/\,ﬁ
EEFIEEZE R WRESKENAEE
2 W KR B R R B B

ERZEENTRNZEeR LEHRRAAR

BE_T-ZTF 1= H:+-EI¢¢F£E’]E7I
BHRRAKE=SEHE- BT ——FE &
REZEEBFRELAMZREZNRAE

EEREMERBEZNES-

REIBFEE R 5IMNEAZ BAD A A £ B iR 1
CRERIERERBE MO, A A
BRAMT:

During the year, the Company has formulated an internal self-
assessment process covering all the key controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. Also, management has analysed the
control environment and risk assessment, assessed the various
controls implemented and agreed with the Board on the scope of
review over the system of internal controls. The approach of the
review includes conducting interviews with relevant management
and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system and evaluating findings on any
deficiencies in the design of the internal controls and developing
recommendations for improvement, where appropriate.

Subsequent to the year end, the management has reported the
results of the review to the audit committee for its evaluation
on the effectiveness of the system. A meeting was held by the
committee to discuss the findings and the results of the review
which were endorsed for reporting to the Board. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled with its
own observations and with the assistance of the audit committee,
the present internal controls and risk management processes
are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations
and business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate
review of the systems and procedures is being carried out by the
management from time to time to maintain a high standard of
internal control and will make appropriate changes to the internal
control system, if necessary.

At the same meeting, the audit committee also reviewed and
endorsed the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010 for approval by the Board. From 2011
onwards, the audit committee will meet at least three times a year
to discuss the internal control and other audit related issues.

During the year under review, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditor to the Group were as follows:

Fee paid/payable

REME Services rendered e ENER
US$'000

FET

% B R 7% Audit services 111
e BUAR TS Non-audit services 66

EREZERERA
—E-TEER
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EXeCRUFNEZES YO HEELEEB
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BETAHE_T-—TF+_A=+—HI
HHE FNZEeVERREAER-

REGHER FTHEZESHRTEETRSRE
BEMRRETHE BROIBTEFRSQE
BRENFMERE BANARMEESREH
BiRHHEEER - BT ——FR FMES

SEBFHELAR-—REE-

HITEE®

ARARNATEZEGHMBATERFR =4
FRTEFTER BEAFERELETLH
TZE&XF-

EXECRUATZESY H|E & EBER
B JRAEEER THRE BELED B
TZEENIERELRECTEREANHE R
MEHEREER BHTFERTREQA
RES BHAEF BRI LFLHEERAE -

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive
Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi currently serves as the chairman of the
remuneration committee.

The Board has established the remuneration committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out the duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated by the Board. The major
duties and responsibilities of the remuneration committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies
and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure
for determination of such remuneration policies.

No meeting of the remuneration committee was held from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2010.

Subsequent to the year end, the remuneration committee had
assessed the performance of the executive Directors and the
senior management, reviewed the remuneration structure/package
of the executive Directors and the senior management, and made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration. From 2011
onwards, the remuneration committee will meet at least once per
year.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Company consists of two
executive Directors and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin
Yi currently serves as the chairman of the executive committee.

The Board has established the executive committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and
responsibilities of the executive committee include reviewing the
financials and financial-related matters, assisting in developing
annual and medium- to long-term corporate strategies, reviewing
and approving new business development plans, and reviewing
and approving research and development projects.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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B REVEE
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HEBUTREBZE: (BTRERAFRE
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RARRRBIEIRHAEENTHER -

BAEBEIERERAR
—E-ZTFEFER

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to
keep abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group
and to monitor and ensure that the management carries out the
directions and strategies set by the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on
pages 49 to 50 in this report.

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the
Group and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support
from the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects
the shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates
their suggestions to the Company. The Company communicates
with the shareholders in the following ways: (i) the holding of an
annual general meeting which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the
publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules providing
updated information of the Group; and (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group on the Company’s website.
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FE1E127EAEBEIEREBMR AR (AT
BIEAT ) REMBRAR (A THEBIESE
B WEGEEAMBRE LEEVEREERE
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RBENEE

BAMNETRBRERMANETEZESAY
BRRFLBER URBEARBHEEN
fiR SR P BE BB A R 55 - BR UL 2 S AN 3R 4
BEHEMAN RMATERARENARRME
MEMALE ESAEEAAL

BFIERE CBIRFTER) EITE - %F
ERNERFMBTERRE  WARERRT
B N ERTSAMBBRRESIFHE
I EARHERRAL

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE ¢ +852 2541 5041 HETHEER1158
{8H : +852 2815 2239 JREHIH251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 51 to
127, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010

.o}



L

B AR E RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RATRFARRE BEREMBERSE
BB EBEEERNETERE -IEED
T2 7 BUR 7O A% 2R A B9 #I B - B 1R B X
FFRERMEBREMBRRFEEKRER
B R R - FERF (i SRR - A BEE B
HZARmGEMBRRMMELEEM A
FHRRBBOAIZES  ARFEENR
2R BB I IEE R B A BRI H B B R
HBEXEBER - BANERIEESEHEAS
AERRNEBEERELEFETNEENE
ARFHEGRAMBRERNBEIHRIA -

BPIEE RAMESNETEEETEM
EEMAEMANESFTRIEHER-

=R

BMRR ZEEAVBHRRERE (B
MR EER) BEMAFHRER HELQF
K BEEER-_Z-ZF+_A=+—8H
EBMRRAN BEEEBEZB LEFEONE
MEERE UDRRBREE (RAUED)D) BE
BRTZRmR-

ERYERERNAEBFERAT
L]

8K ¥
HEZEZRY - P04434

F8 —T——F=H+AH

BB RER AR
—_T-ZTEER

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung, Ringo
Practising Certificate Number: P04434

Hong Kong, 15 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

—E-ZF —ETAF
2010 2009
B 7E FEx FEx
Notes Us$’000 US$’000
A Revenue 6 58,607 47,932
5 & R A Cost of sales (20,174) (15,493)
EF Gross profit 38,433 32,439
Hfth g A Other income 6 1,972 820
HE R HRX Selling and distribution expenses (20,429) (18,143)
THAX Administrative expenses (7,024) (5,546)
KRR Profit from operations 8 12,952 9,570
B 75 B 7R Finance costs 9 (388) (667)
FEAGHE & A R A Share of post-tax profit of
B B 18 0m an associate 221 =
Fr 88 Al &R Profit before income tax 12,785 8,903
Fris & Income tax expense 11 (2,572) (1,523)
FERF Profit for the year 10,213 7,380
Hip 2w Other comprehensive income
BREGIINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising on
N ER translation of foreign operations 1,600 (36)
FEHM2EKE Other comprehensive income for
($0BRTEIE) the year, net of tax 1,600 (36)
FEZHKFEE Total comprehensive income for
the year 11,813 7,344
PNNETE ¥ =N ol | Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 12 10,213 7,380
ARAREBAEMLAEZE Total comprehensive income
W48 58 attributable to owners of the
Company 11,813 7,344
SREMN-ER Earnings per share - Basic 14 2.7 centsEAL 2.5 centsZ=1ll

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-T-—TF+-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2010

—E-2F —ZETAF
2010 2009
B FEx FEx
Notes US$’000 US$’000
gE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
ER SN Property, plant and equipment 16 19,797 16,951
T fE A Land use rights 17 2,413 2,398
BAE Intangible assets 18 8,862 7,663
RS Goodwill 19 6,824 6,824
i RN o i Interest in an associate 21 24,380 =
62,276 33,836
hREBEE Current assets
BB Inventories 22 6,079 3,852
g5 REMEKRKIE Trade and other receivables 23 29,283 20,592
T3 A Land use rights 17 54 53
EEARITER Pledged bank deposits 24 92 800
ReRkBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 14,827 4,055
50,335 29,352
BEE Total assets 112,611 63,188
ERkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRFHE Capital and reserves
EATEEAEERES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
[N Share capital 25 4,150 29,491
B0 i (B Share premium 26 68,475 14
EF R Treasury shares - (6,605)
HINEE R Foreign exchange reserve 4,387 2,787
EE Statutory reserve 1,311 704
IRBE 4 A Retained profits 13,942 3,565
BmER Total equity 92,265 29,956

BAAEBEERER AR
T -TFEFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-T-TE+-A=t-H

As at 31 December 2010

—E-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
B 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$’000 US$’000

EREBEE Non-current liabilities
BE Borrowings 27 7,390 10,407
EXERBEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 394 394
7,784 10,801

REBEE Current liabilities

e Borrowings 27 3,303 8,881
18 Current tax liabilities 1,147 258
AR =N Amount due to a fellow subsidiary 30 - 311
B 5 & H e 508 Trade and other payables 29 8,112 12,981
12,562 22,431
wmeE Total liabilities 20,346 33,232
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 112,611 63,188
REBEEFRE Net current assets 37,773 6,921
BEERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 100,049 40,757

FEOIR1I2TEMNUERRER T ——F =
A+HHEEZEESH & RKETZ  WH N

TALTRERRE:

EF
DIRECTOR
®E
XU JUN

and are signed on its behalf by:

EF

DIRECTOR

BB R

LIU XIAO DONG

The financial statements on pages 51 to 127 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2011

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZ—TF+-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2010

—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
B 7E FEx FEx
Notes US$’000 US$’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
NN Interest in a subsidiary 15 25,020 =
REBEE Current assets
FE W BT |8 A Rl ZkIE Amount due from a subsidiary 15 46,885 =
A 3RIE Prepayments 23 29 16
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 16 =
46,930 16
HWEE Total assets 71,950 16
EakB8E EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ARBEBAELER Equity attributable to the
Company’s owners
fi& 7% Share capital 25 4,150 =
R% 17 % 8 Share premium 26 68,475 =
g Accumulated losses 26 (797) =
R Total equity 71,828 =
REBEE Current liabilities
FE A B B A Bl FRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 15 - 16
FEET FRIE Accruals 29 122 =
BwEE Total liabilities 122 16
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 71,950 16
REBEEFHE Net current assets 46,808 =
REERRBAR Total assets less current
liabilities 71,828 -
EZE EZE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
#®"E 2R
XU JUN LIU XIAO DONG

BAAEBEERER AR
T -TFEFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z-ZF+_A=1—BRLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FER FET
Us$’000 US$’000
REREEBNEERE Cash flows from operating activities
FfT 45 ¢ B g A Profit before income tax 12,785 8,903
P Adjustments for:
BRI A A Finance costs recognised 388 667
FE WA Interest income (109) (247)
FEAG B = A R 9 BR 0 12 5 Share of post-tax profit of an associate (221) =
B 5 MW IR R BB E Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 153 50
(B[R, Hib W IERER  (Reversal of)/provision for impairment of
B other receivables (440) 2
e Depreciation 1,050 864
b B R A E Amortisation of land use rights 59 48
HEME WERZXEERE Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 20 18
| A EMH Write off of intangible assets 51 15
BB R EFERE Reversal of impairment of obsolete
inventories (26) -
EEESEEHA 2K E RN Operating profit before working capital
changes 13,710 10,320
FEIEM Increase in inventories (2,083) (2,085)
B 5 N H i e %)\Igi“)]l] Increase in trade and other receivables (7,483) (5,038)
B 5 Rk E AN FRIE (Decrease)/increase in trade
CR ) /1 and other payables (2,292) 2,809
HEELZHE Cash generated from operations 1,852 6,006
ERHLE Interest paid (432) (667)
[EENPIIEE: %R Income tax paid (1,683) (1,192)
AT E) () ELZ Net cash (used in)/generated from
B FH operating activities (263) 4,147
RETBELEZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEMIRITEIORLD Decrease in pledged bank deposits 733 78
BEWE BE M&E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,368) (4,287)
BB 4t (F A Purchase of land use rights - (427)
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,015) (874)
HEMZE - WERZE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant
F1S 3K38 and equipment 16 =
W B = A Rl e Acquisition of interest in an associate (23,954) =
=& ) Interest received 109 247
BB BT B 2 FEE Net cash used in investing activities (27,479) (5,263)

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z-ZTF+_A=1+—BLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FER FET
Us$’000 US$'000
REMELIBZEERE Cash flows from financing activities
EESKIE Proceeds from borrowings 17,473 9,496
EEEERE Repayment of borrowings (26,374) (3,443)
BITR (0 BT 1S 5008 Proceeds from issue of shares 57,721 =
BITRMDAEEANER Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares (4,726) -
FE U e A [B) K BT B A 7 Movements in amounts due from/to fellow
HIEEH subsidiaries (311) (6,632)
BT IR E Dividend paid (5,390) (3,300)
BETEESL"(HH)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)
B & FEE financing activities 38,393 (3,879)
Re RIS EEBY 2 FE Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
yae: 7)) equivalents 10,651 (4,995)
FMHEeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year 4,055 9,103
ERFEH T8 Effects of exchange rate changes 121 (53)
FRESRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year 14,827 4,055
ARSI RAR A A
—_T-ZTEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_Z-—ZF+-_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

& 43 {8 EFKRH MERRE EERE REEF Y £

Foreign
Share Share Treasury exchange Statutory Retained
capital premium shares reserve reserve profits  Total equity

TER TER TX TETL TET TER TER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

RZZTNF-R—A&# Balance at 1 January 2009 29,491 14 (13,115) 2,823 576 2,953 22,742
BATH N E B AR (D Issue of earn-out shares = = 2,744 = = = 2,744
“EENFRHRE 2008 final dividend = = = = - (3,340) (3,340)
PARRA 2 Scrip issue - - 3,766 - - - 3,766
ZZTAFHERE 2009 interim dividend - - - - - (3,300 (3,300)
HERANETRS Transactions with owners - - 6,510 - - (6,640) (130)
F 1 Profit for the year - - - - - 7,380 7,380
Hit 2@ K Other comprehensive income - = = (36) = = (36)
FRA2EKHEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - (36) - 7,380 7,344
BERSFTRHE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 128 (128) -

R-ZZFTAE+=-A=1+—H Balance at 31 December 2009

or 29,491 14 (6,605) 2,787 704 3,565 29,956
AEBEHEMES Arising on group reorganisation (26,491) 22,006 4,485 - - - -
BTG Issue of earn-out shares - - 2,120 = - - 2,120
HMHHARE Write off of contingent consideration - - - - - 771 771
e Issue of shares 1,150 56,571 = = = = 57,721
BIRGAMEENER Expenses incurred in connection with

the issue of shares - (4,726) - - - - (4,726)
K RIS (B FE13) Special dividend (note 13) - (5,390) - - - - (5,390)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners (25,341) 68,461 6,605 - - 771 50,496
F W Profit for the year = = = = = 10,213 10,213
Hi 2 E ke Other comprehensive income = = = 1,600 = = 1,600
FRZHEKSAE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 1,600 - 10,213 11,813
BRZLTRHE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 607 (607) -

RZZT-FF+=-A=1+—H Balance at 31 December 2010
g 4,150 68,475 - 4,387 1,311 13,942 92,265

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

NGE=-E2

BAAEBSEZERAER AR ([AAd])
g 7h¢ﬂﬂ+ﬁﬁﬁﬁ§§$%fﬁ
ML REREEBR AR HRORK
T EFERALRERABERS
FTERAR (IBERRAM])FER E-
AR A A RE 3 £ R A Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands ° AN 2 &) A £ B & 3 ih B AL 7
BEAEHETIBIRTEB/AEI2IE
1203-4%E
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 May 2010. The
Company’s registered office is located at Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place of business
is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal
activities of the Group are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda and
whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange.
The directors consider the ultimate holding company
to be Cathay International Enterprises Limited which is
incorporated in Bermuda.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 were approved for issue by the broad of directors on
15 March 2011.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Through a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares (the “Group Reorganisation”), the
Company became the holding company of the Group on 21
April 2010. Details of the Group Reorganisation are more
fully explained in the paragraph headed “Reorganisation”
in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Group
Structure” of the prospectus of the Company dated 27
April 2010 (the “Prospectus”). The Group resulting from the
Group Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity.
Accordingly, the Group Reorganisation had been accounted
for using the principles of merger accounting, under which
the Company had been treated as the holding company
of its subsidiaries as at 1 January 2009 or since their
respective dates of incorporation or acquisition whichever
was shorter. The assets and liabilities of the combining
entities or businesses are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognised as consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost. Difference between the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued, if any, and the net asset value
of the acquiree is recognised directly in equity as share
premium. The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009
have been prepared on the basis as if the current Group
structure had been in existence throughout the years. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2009 has been prepared to present
the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current Group structure had been in
existence as at that date.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
and Interpretations (collectively “IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in United
States Dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance
with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Group’s management to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas where significant judgments and
estimates have been made in preparing the financial
statements and their effect are disclosed in note 5.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards and interpretations:

IFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to IFRSs

IAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items

IFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Business Combinations

IAS 27 (Revised)
IFRS 3 (Revised)

IFRIC — Interpretation 17  Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

The application of the new and revised standards and
interpretations in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

IFRSs (Amendments)

IFRS 1 (Amendments)

IAS 32 (Amendments)

IFRIC — Interpretation 14

(Amendments)

IFRIC — Interpretation 19

IFRS 9

Improvements to IFRSs issued in
201028

Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for the
First-time Adopter*

Classification of Right Issues!

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?
Financial Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Under IFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost
depending on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity
will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. IFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from IAS 39, except for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit or loss,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 retains the
requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

The directors are in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new and revised IFRSs and so
far concluded that the application of these new and revised
IFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable
at the reporting date. All dividends whether received out of
the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised
in the Company’s profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after
1 January 2010

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not
be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Business combination prior to 1 January 2010

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant
subsidiaries are measured at their fair values at the date of
acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is stated at
the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and
liabilities recognised.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurred in
connection with business combinations were capitalised as
part of the cost of the acquisition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less any impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.
Associates are accounted for using equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their
carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate
are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profit and loss resulting
from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying
value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate and the entire carrying
amount of the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
which is higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business and the
use by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net
of discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised
as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of
delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries or the maximum mandatory contribution as required
by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The contributions recognised in respect to defined
contribution benefit plans are expenses as they fall due.
Liabilities and assets may be recognised if underpayment
or prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short
term nature.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by Group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. US$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use on sale. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All
changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(c) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(d) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below)
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The major
categories of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
as follows:

Building and Plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments to acquire long
term interest in the usage of land. The payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method
over the lease terms between 40 to 50 years.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research
and development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any impairment losses. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research
and development activities (Continued)

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in profit or loss as they occur. An intangible asset arising
from development expenditure on an individual project is
recognised provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

° sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life
are amortised from the commencement of the commercial
production of the product on straight-line method over the
period of its expected benefit. Capitalised development
costs with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that
have a finite useful life to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of any depreciation or
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling
and distribution.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These (including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest and principal payments; or it
becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance of an
active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueqd)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

In a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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BEESEMNBAXNBHERANT
& BN R T AN EE M H TR £ R
BEFHNK(H A E)E 2B MGE R
KIRE N FRITER A=K

FERATIRERF REERER -
#BETH
BETEAFRAEERNMBRAERE
BEEETAFSGESNERNER-

RABFETHER TREZSWAAER
R BERETRATIR-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables and amounts due to related
companies are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting

all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investment with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amount of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in

value.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segments under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
financial statements prepared under IFRS, except that:

= share of results of associate accounted for using
equity method

- income tax
- finance costs

— corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase
of assets are included in liabilities as deferred government
grants in the statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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5. BEg L & HE 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
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AND JUDGEMENTS

The estimates and underlying assumptions used in the
preparation of these financial statements are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based
on assessment of the recoverability of receivables from
debtors. The identification of the impairment requires
management judgements and estimates where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of the receivables and impairment losses/reversal of
impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The directors estimate that the intangible assets, which
represent the intellectual property rights in pharmaceutical
industry, have indefinite useful lives as they believe that
there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over
which these intellectual property rights are expected to
provide cash flows and these intellectual property rights can
be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the
products are continuing in the market.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwiill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount
of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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6. WARHEMUA 6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
AEBRERNHEA (AEEREE An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which is also the
HIREMBAZDTEAT : Group's turnover, and other income for the years are as

follows:
—E-ZF —ETAF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000
HEERHBA Revenue from sales of goods 58,607 47,932
Hp g A Other income
AT B Bh & Government grants 1,859 546
I IR A EFT AB R Interest income on financial assets not
SHEEMNTELA at fair value through profit or loss 109 247
HAh Others 4 27
1,972 820
NEEERBE S R RERMB S S The Group received grants from the local government in
TAREENRBRAZESMEER I the PRC as recognition of the Group’s performance and
BY B9 7 B & 71 M A5 faT 5 4 © development of high-technology pharmaceutical products.
The grants received were not subject to any conditions.

7. DEHEFE 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
REEMS AEEDNREERERA For management purposes, the Group is organised into
BAXEBEN WHAMEZAT2HRHK business units based on its product types and has two
BB reportable operating segments as follows:

. [B0% F B 5 78 8 . Rheumatic specialty prescription western

pharmaceuticals;

°
\|
/|
—_
=
St
et
S
o

o Other pharmaceuticals.

BB EIER AR A A
—T-ZEER
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7. 7EHER (&)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

EREEMRERSERKRRFE T EED Management monitors the results of its business units
AERDHAERHEERSEMMNER -9 separately for the purpose of making decision about
BRIRDIRRBAT 2 WMo MBHRE KT resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment

BB T 2 B -

performance is evaluated based on the results from the
reportable segments as explained in the table below.

—E-2fF
2010
ERER
BHAEE HitEm @t
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals pharmaceuticals Total
TEn FERr Fxn
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
ATERHIBRA Reportable segment revenue
—REEHIINEFHRA - Revenue from external customers 40,579 18,028 58,607
ATERDBEF Reportable segment profit 32,152 6,281 38,433
ZEENF
2009
REER
RABE Hit%m st
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals ~ pharmaceuticals Total
TEr TEx T%x
US$'000 US$'000 US$’'000
BTERIBRA Reportable segment revenue
—REHIIRFPHBA - Revenue from external customers 33,102 14,830 47,932
RTEHRHBEA Reportable segment profit 26,256 6,183 32,439
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7. DEHEHR (&)

AEEREDBRANBRET HRE
ERNASE T ZMBKEBEOH RN

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented

s @ in the financial statements is as follows:
—E-ZF —EThF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000

AR EE Profit or loss

BT 2N IR A Reportable segment profit 38,433 32,439
FEAG B E A RIMIBR A 1ZE A Share of post-tax profit of an associate 221 =
HAth R 5D EEHA Other income not allocated 1,972 820
B AR Other expenses not allocated (27,453) (23,689)
B 75 B AR Finance costs (388) (667)
P15 %5t Bl & A Profit before income tax 12,785 8,903

BT 2B BHEAIEEHBOEF T
M E S ERIEE R ERERT
PR B % -

REBE-_T—TF+_F=+— E¢¢
ZKEIMAU\ FR14% (ZZEE R
F:15% ) Jhk B r/ﬁ\m:?tuﬂ/\*ﬁq:'m
B-—FEF-RHEH AEEZEHEIK
HEZ23% (ZZEZTNF:14% ) KA
REZEFE -

R

BB RER AR
T -TFEFH

Reportable segment profit represent the gross profit by each
segment. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 14% (2009:
15%) of the Group’s revenue was derived from a single
customer in the “other pharmaceuticals” segment. As at
the reporting date, 23% (2009: 14%) of the Group’s trade
receivables was due from this customer.
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7. DEHER (&) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

REBEBNWRATIEIDET IR

The Group’s revenues are divided into the following
geographical areas:

—E-FF —ETHF

2010 2009

FER F=7

Us$’000 US$’000

FE(FE) PRC (domicile) 57,512 47,315
BRI Overseas 1,095 617
58,607 47,932

EPMMECE A REREHNESR
MO EREE - ARABSRFERS
AMKZREZER AT MAKEE
B BEMES AEENEEEE
RIVEEBMRFE At HEREE
R REERIFSNR (K208 Frak
EHREMSREFARENTHE
-

RMEFE AKENAAEFRBDEE
BFHRRE -

HRTETHMERERESBEEL
DHABER MULEB2JBEHEEH-

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands where the Group does
not have any activities, the Group has the majority of its
operations and workforce in the PRC, and therefore, PRC
is considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the
purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were
located in the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as
they are not regularly provided to the management.
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8. B&ERF 8. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
REBRKSEHFTEME, (GEA) The Group’s profit from operations has been arrived at after
TAEIBEET - charging/(crediting):

—E-ZF —ETAF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000
1% 26 B & Auditors’ remuneration
— ZE R T - Audit service 111 44
—ERE R — Non-audit service 66 =
W WERERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,050 864
b 5 R RE 4R Amortisation of land use rights 59 48
B 5 MW IR R B A Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 153 50
H th & e3R8 (Reversal of)/provision for impairment of
BAE (D )/%é‘fﬁ other receivables (440) 2
EH (M=), BiEFHE Net exchange (gain)/loss (161) 25
BRAERINEFEENA Cost of inventories recognised
as expenses 19,922 15,268
T RBFHLLHER S  Operating lease charges in respective of
land and building 353 377
Tiff 2% Ak 7R Research and development costs 274 274
HEME MENMKREERE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 20 18
BREFSE (BE), #E (Reversal of)/provision for obsolete
inventories (26) -
A EME Write off of intangible asset 51 15
BTIRA (BIEES=HH)  Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—ITE&ENH® - Wages and salaries 5,568 4,804
— EREM A E — Defined contribution plan 459 268
6,027 5,072

@T:Hxﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁj
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9. M 9. FINANCE COSTS
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
FTEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
ARAFRNBHEEZ Interest on bank borrowings wholly

RITEER B repayable within five years 433 667

BETAERELIREZ Less: Interest capitalised included in
B AR A A construction in progress (45) =
388 667

10. EEEBEEHEALTHNE 10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

[y FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
EEHM Directors’ remuneration
BN EEMNTARAARESHNHINAZEN The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to
I the directors of the Company are as follows:
e 2EMN RAREA
ne ENEA FTEIMN @t
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit plans
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
TER FER TER FER
us$'000 Us$’000 US$’000 us$'000

BZE-Z-Z54+-H Yearended

=t—HLEEFE 31 December 2010
HTES: Executive directors:
®E Xu Jun - 168 14 182
ZER Liu Xiao Dong - 99 1 110
FHITES: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 29 - - 29
ZER Lee Jin Vi - - - -
nE Tang Jun - - - -
bz Tao Fang Fang - - - _
EMmE Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
Robert Peter Thian Robert Peter Thian 27 - - 27
[FEC Chan Kee Huen, Michael 22 - - 22
HB¥ Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 22 - - 22

100 267 25 392

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. EENEBREHFALTHH
M (&)

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

EEHM (E) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
He R RNET
e EMEN SRR st
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit plans
Fees  benefits in kind contributions Total
TEn T=n FET TEn
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
BEZZTNETZH Yearended
=+—HLEFE 31 December 2009
HITES: Executive directors:
hE Xu Jun - 151 11 162
Bl -2 Liu Xiao Dong = 100 9 109
FRHITES: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt - - - -
ZER Lee Jin Vi = = = =
%8 Tang Jun - = = =
(b7 Tao Fang Fang = = = =
EMmE Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca = - - -
BIUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
Robert Peter Thian Robert Peter Thian - - - -
[FERYCl Chan Kee Huen, Michael = = = =
BT Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond = = = =
- 251 20 271
EEEEFAL Five highest paid individuals

hERRHEALTEEARAMBES
(ZZEThE WMA) RENFHFE
EREXWAOM-BRT=R(ZFZT N
F ZR)BRSFALNHFEMFBOT

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2009: two) of the Company, details of whose remuneration
are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of
remuneration of the remaining three (2009: three) highest
paid individuals are as follows:

—E-ZF —EETNF

2010 2009

FER FET

US$’000 US$’000

e R EREMET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 245 262

RIRE R FT 2 Retirement benefit plans contributions 34 27

#Et Total 279 289
BB EIERAR QA

—E—TFFR
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10. EENEBREHFALTHH

11.

M (&)

AN T Bt 3FEE 2 B A RO F B 70 A
T :

. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals fell within the following bands:

—2-%F  —EThF

2010 2009

FER FET

Us$’000 US$’'000

= - 128,000 7T Nil — US$128,000 3 3

FA BEEEREIFABHRETMH
0 22 Bk

FRAKERENHNE TEFHE
AEZ&REHFMAL FESNARNEE
KIMARE BIL e R KBRS (B -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or compensation for loss of
office during the year.

Fri8HiR X . INCOME TAX EXPENSE
—®-%%  C-TTAF
2010 2009
FER F=7
US$’000 US$’'000
EHAAT1S Current tax
— B EREH - PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
(TEEmEH]) 2,572 1,198
BEEFTEF Deferred tax
—TEHFTEH (Ffi:E28) — Withholding Income Tax (note 28) - 325
2,572 1,523

o 25 2 0 R B R O BB 2 1 A
S5 8140 T 42 0 BT A M 030 PR
EHH -

BEREAREMBECERSHE
(IEMBRE]) REERMA - A E
MEBARMME —FR25% (ZZTZN
F:25%) o

£ o — RN E 2 AV EERE B
BTG % m=F—FE—A—HE
SEEWOEHBRE  B15%HEK
B

Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax
jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% (2009: 25%).

One of the subsidiaries has been certified for high and
new technology enterprises in the PRC and enjoyed a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% starting from
1 January 2010.
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11.

12.

Frebimx (&|)

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

REEETHBRARAINEEERE Certain subsidiaries of the Group are wholly-owned foreign
BIEFEIINERE D EMINE D ZEE enterprises in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the
WA ZERARCERBEBENFERENN PRC for Enterprise with Foreign Investment and Foreign

BEEENEEENFERL BEMTR
BOEMBSH BRrR=ZFRELEEMNDEE
Frig®i o

FAMSHASEES Z2ERERIT
RET SR ANE FA R T :

Enterprises and are entitled to full exemption from EIT for
two years and a 50% reduction in the following three years
thereafter starting from the first profit-making year after
offsetting prior years’ tax losses.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before income tax per the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income as follows:

—E-ZF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
P15 75 Al g 7 Profit before income tax 12,785 8,903
REARBBERIEERET  Tax on profit at the rates applicable to
F TR E R TIE the jurisdictions concerned 2,591 2,080
NTEBENTBETE: Tax effect of:
I %Rf'?ﬂiﬁ’ﬁﬂi‘%%‘g Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 209 173
FERTUM AT 7 2 Tax effect on non-taxable income (5) 1)
FE(RES 2 N R R84 AIA)  Tax effect of share of post-tax profits of
HBeE an associate (36) =
R mm&%% Unrecognised tax losses - 12
AR AR AEEIE  Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
B2 previously not recognised (12) =
MBER Tax exemption (175) (1,066)
HAEEFTENBARMA Effect of withholding tax on the
7 e i F UL ) TR H R A9 distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
2 subsidiaries - 325
FARMEHREX Income tax expense for the year 2,572 1,523
RAREE AEALRF 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

PN/ T%&ﬁM’EE%:./M\J1o,213,ooo
=T AL 4F : 7,380,000% 7T )
NEE)Z
EBEEERARARTHEREANELIE -

En (=%
- 797,000EF L (—E=E

BB EIER AR A A
T -TFEFH

OF THE COMPANY

financial statements of the Company.

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of US$10,213,000 (2009: US$7,380,000), a
loss of US$797,000 (2009: nil) has been dealt with in the
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13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS

—E-ZF —ETAF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$’000
FEEMRE: Dividend attributable to the year:
FE1.80EFMz=F—ZFF  Special dividend for 2010 of
RIS (M3Ea) US1.80 cents per share (note a) 5,390 =
FR14.42F M2 =ZFFNF  Interim dividend for 2009 of
AR S (5D ) US14.42 cents per share (note b) - 3,300
5,390 3,300
BEVHEEEGRE Dividend attributable to the previous
FRALERER financial year, approved and
(FfFzEC) recognised during the year (note c) - 3,340
5,390 6,640

@) BER-T—ZTFMNANBEITHREAE
BBMLEBARAZR AARAERZBRE
A% S ERR1 .83 + & 5495,390,000% 7T ©

b  RER-FTAFT-A+ - RABRTHERE
AEBEBHNETERER FRERBE_F
FNFT_A=T-HLEFEERELE SR
14.423%Alli - & 5t 493,300,000 7T °

(© BER=—TTNE- A+ BRITHOREKR
CRBNTBERZR ASELEHEE=ZT
TNF+_A=+—BLEEEZAHRES
f%18.38%1Ill - & 713,340,000% 7T ©

EXEIRBEBRE_T-TF+_A
=T BUEFENRERESR 41K
il - & 545,852,000k 7T * HEZAR FEJE
BRAE LR RAER TR

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the General Meeting held
on 9 April 2010, the Company declared a dividend of US1.8 cents per
share, totalling approximately US$5,390,000, to the then shareholders.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed at the General Meeting held
on 11 December 2009, the Group declared a dividend of US14.42 cents
per share, totalling approximately US$3,300,000, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the General Meeting held
on 19 January 2009, the Group approved a final dividend of US18.38
cents per share, totalling US$3,340,000, in respect of the year ended 31
December 2008.

The final dividend of US1.41 cents per share, totally
approximately US$5,852,000, in respect of the year ended
31 December 2010 has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming general meeting.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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14.

15.

BRER

BREARMNTIIZRFEANANRBIEE AR
15424 % F }2374,438,356% B 317 A%
7 (ZZ Z 14 : 300,000,0008% ) 2 hn
BEHEHE TREAEEEHER
—TTHAFE-A—BELER FEBHRN
MI5E25 o

HRFERYEEEEERD  RAEZ
S| G EE AR -

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
and on the weighted average number of 374,438,356
(2009: 300,000,000) shares in issue during the year on the
assumption that the Group Reorganisation as detailed in
note 25 have been effective on 1 January 2009.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential dilutive shares during the year.

RHEEB QB2 &= 15. INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY
—E-BfF —EThE
2010 2009
FEx T=ET
US$’000 US$’000
& Investments
REMBG  EKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 25,020 =

BREREHERZHE QA FBEEHNLH
5£35 °

JEU (fER) —RMBRARNSER
BEER 2EREAREREE-EER
R BHnREEEAFERS -

BB EIER AR A A
—T-ZEER

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 35.

The amounts due from/(to) a subsidiary were unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand. The directors
consider that the carrying amounts of the balances

approximate to their fair values.
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16. W% - MERRE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rE Group
BFRERE B AE KARRE ERIR @i
Furniture
Building Motor and  Construction
and plant Machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
TEx = Txn e e TEx
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
R-ZZAE—A—HAt 1 January 2009
KA Cost 10,059 3,827 426 600 43 14,955
ZEhE Accumulated depreciation (442) (550) (229) (201) = (1,422)
REFE Net carrying amount 9,617 3,277 197 399 43 13,533
HZE-ZF A%+ = A Year ended 31 December
=t+—HILEE 2009
FNREFAE Opening net carrying
amount 9,617 3,277 197 399 43 13,533
iE AR Exchange adjustment 9 3 = 1 = 13
RE Additions 331 350 172 272 3,162 4,287
ne Depreciation (325) (340) (91) (108) - (864)
RE Disposals = 8) @) 8) = (18)
RegTiRER Transfer from construction
in progress 424 12 = = (436) =
FRE@FAE Closing net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
RZTTNF At 31 December 2009
t=A=t-A
A Cost 10,824 4,072 574 769 2,769 19,008
2itiE Accumulated depreciation (768) (778) (298) (213) = (2,057)
REFE Net carrying amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
HE_-Z—Z %1 = A Year ended 31 December
—t-ALFE 2010
FOREEE Opening net carrying
amount 10,056 3,294 276 556 2,769 16,951
i 7, 3% Exchange adjustment 309 101 8 17 85 520
NE Additions 48 1,003 291 344 1,726 3,412
nE Depreciation (415) (395) (70) (170) - (1,050)
RE Disposals - (15) (14) (7 - (36)
RepTiREs Transfer from construction
in progress 3,136 427 45 117 (8,725) -
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount 13,134 4,415 536 857 855 19,797
R-ZZ-—ZF At 31 December 2010
TZA=+-H
B A Cost 14,340 5,822 855 1,219 855 23,091
Z2EE Accumulated depreciation (1,206) (1,407) (319) (362) - (3,294)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,134 4,415 536 857 855 19,797

RZE—ZFTF+_A=+—H @A
{8 /53,138,000EF Tt 2 & THE N & &

— =T N4 :9,608,000% jT) & K ##
ERBRITREZERREIRITEENE

& o

As at 31 December 2010, certain plant and equipment with
a carrying amount of US$3,138,000 (2009: US$9,608,000)
were pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank

borrowings.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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17. T AR

17. LAND USE RIGHTS

rE Group
—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$’000
BBREI HUATAHR Outside Hong Kong, held on:
A
—HHEE — Medium-term leases 2,467 2,451
B Rt ARBEER Less: Current portion included in
mENE D current assets (54) (53)
FTASERENEER Non-current portion included in
ERBE D non-current assets 2,413 2,398
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FERx FET
USs$’000 US$'000
FYREFAE Opening net carrying amount 2,451 2,070
NE Additions - 427
FAREBERE Amortisation charge for the year (59) (48)
b 5, 58 2 Exchange adjustment 75 2
FAREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,467 2,451
IREEERE Gross carrying amount 2,670 2,591
Eg: i3 Accumulated amortisation (203) (140)
REVFE Net carrying amount 2,467 2,451

R-ZE—ZEF+_A=+—HBH EKHE
833,000k 2B FEERRE (=
T T H 4 1 2,024,000% 7T ) EHEIBIES

RITREAFELR -

BB RER AR
—T-ZEER

As at 31 December 2010, certain land use rights with a
carrying amount of US$833,000 (2009: US$2,024,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities.



B ISERARMIEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z—ZF+_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

18. BILEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
rE Group
FE

US$’000
RZZETZNF—HA—H At 1 January 2009
DN Cost 6,917
Z ST Accumulated amortisation (118)
R FE Net carrying amount 6,799
HE_ZZAF+_A=1+—H Year ended 31 December 2009

IEFE
FYIERE FE Opening net carrying amount 6,799
NE Additions 874
M 5 38 B Exchange adjustment 5
BE Disposals (15)
FREMEFE Closing net carrying amount 7,663
RZZEZNEFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2009
B 7R Cost 7,781
ZETEE S Accumulated amortisation (118)
BRHEFE Net carrying amount 7,663
BZE-Z—ZH+=-H=1+—H Year ended 31 December 2010
LEE

F YR FE Opening net carrying amount 7,663
NE Additions 1,015
& 3 & Exchange adjustment 235
BRE Disposals (51)
FREREFE Closing net carrying amount 8,862
R=Z2—=Z2F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2010
X X Cost 8,984
ZETHEH Accumulated amortisation (122)
REFE Net carrying amount 8,862

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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18.

19.

EREE (&)

EREERRRBERMBE FEN
MBERE(TNBERE]) EFRRZ
FHNBEEAEAYRLSER AREE
EOAMBEEA KRS RENHEL
A R RE o FELAMBEER N —
By P DA RPN S4B - T 2 O P M A
FE -

1 21 58k E HEE R (L + S O D 1 P S U3
R B B E R ST o B AE AR MM B E
BISETHE YNEBRAMRFESF
RAETTRER R - MiHH B RETEE
PR I A B R0 o8 2 W R BEJRUME - S AR R
Mo HETTORE R

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets represent intellectual property rights (“IPR”)
acquired/developed for the pharmaceutical technology. The
directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as
there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
the IPR in pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide
cash flows. These IPR can be renewable in a period of
time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the
asset should be written down or written off immediately to
expense. IPR with indefinite useful lives is not amortised
and are tested for impairment annually at each financial year
end or more frequently if there are indications that IPR with
indefinite useful lives might be impaired.

ma 19. GOODWILL
rEH Group
—E-ZF —TETHAF
2010 2009
FER FxET
uUSsS$’000 US$’000
REE Carrying amount 6,824 6 804

AEER _ZTEAFRBERIESN
BEERDA ([BRYE])RALEL
(RINBERRA (DRIIAE]D) - % F
RBUNRBEEFHEARK-

AE BN E R BKFE AR EE
TTRERIS - 78 IR BN 2 A BER
B BEREWETRERNA -

BB RER AR
—T-ZEER

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah”) and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in
2005. These transactions have been accounted for by the
acquisition method of accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each
financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.



B ISERARMIEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z—ZF+_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

0. BENERFEHEHMNER  20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
EE /R ERE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

BERETE SR FE18 19897 For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
BRAFEARAAERNETLEECE intangible assets with indefinite useful lives set out in notes
PRBESELASMN BREIEEBRED 18 and 19 have been allocated to one CGU, including
AREERBEBEELNNB AR - subsidiaries with principal activities of manufacturing and

trading of pharmaceutical products.

RZE—ZFF+_A=+T—HERZEZT The net carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets
NFE+ZA=+—1H BEREVEE as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
WEREFERAT
rEE Group
—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$'000
S Goodwill 6,824 6,824
BLEE Intangible assets 8,862 7,663
15,686 14,487
BHE-_ZT-ZTF+_A=+—HLHF During the year ended 31 December 2010, management
E AEEEEERABREMENAF of the Group determines that there are no impairments of
ARAAERNEFEELANBESE any of its CGU containing goodwill or intangible assets with
A BN R E © indefinite useful lives.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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20. BEREREH ﬁ,ﬁli’ﬂ,iﬂiﬂé

EEHNRERNH (&

PR ELEMARESENEER
HEIZHA/RKMPAMT :

RESELEMNTRESE D NER
BEG B RN o R E AR AR ER
M T R SR T 4F A T TR
B3 % R B I R10%M BB K (=
TTAE:10%) - 12.5%H) 8 5 & I
EREERETED - BEETEED
EpEERZPERESRAL T
it ERREEENEERENR-
BB ERERZR S ELEMBE
WERBANREREYTIREREOES -
EBERAE EALERRNAEHE
AR EIRNES ST EHZRS
ELEMNAEAERALTKE S
-

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU
and its major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, and discount
rate of 10% (2009: 10%). The growth rate of 12.5% is
based on pharmaceutical industry growth forecast. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

21. RBE N B2 ER 21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
S —EThAF
2010 2009
FEx F=ET
US$’000 US$’000
EihEEFE Share of net assets 6,815 =
S Goodwill 17,565 -
24,380 -
PR B BT B R A Al
—T-ZEER
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21. RBE QT 2= (&) 21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)
RZE—ZTF+_A=+—80 &5H As at 31 December 2010, the Group had interest in the
BEEUTEHE A& : following associate:
AEEFFEM
AT EB = 8 B 3L 1t B BEARAEMEOLG FEEK

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of registered capital
Name of entity incorporation held by the Group Principal activities
AL RIARM REFR A A A 20% AEEREEEMAP S
(IAAZ])
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical PRC 20%  Production of bulk
Company Limited (“Starry”) pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
B R R 2 RPN B F W 7 Included in the cost of interest in an associate is goodwill of
K SLFTEE £ R 17,565,000% 7T (= US$17,565,000 (2009: nil) arising on acquisition of Starry in
TENF E) - current year.
B NS E S A B8 B 15 & RSt an Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
TS 8 associate is set out below:
—EB-2F —EZNF
2010 2009
TER FET
US$’000 US$’000
BEE Total assets 75,688 =
FEN=r Total liabilities (41,612) =
BEFE Net assets 34,076 =
AEBEGEEESFE Group’s share of net assets 6,815 =

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010



B ISERARMIEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-F—TFT-A=f+—AILER
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21. REE QR 2 Em (&)

(Continued)

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FER F=ET
Us$’000 US$’000
Wi HBERE B Total revenue from the date of
FEU N acquisition to reporting date 6,013 =
Wi HBERE B Total profit for the year from the date of
FRNE R acquisition to reporting date 1,214 =
REBE(GHE AT Group’s share of post-tax profit of an
R 350 1% 0 71 associate 211 =
22. 78 22. INVENTORIES
rKE Group
—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
USs$’000 US$'000
JR ¥ Raw materials 2,198 1,339
£ 8 Work-in-progress 792 647
2K i Finished goods 3,089 1,866
6,079 3,852

ENFEHERAIE:.

BB EIER AR A A
—T-ZEER

All inventories are stated at cost.
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23. EF R H U RIE 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

rE Group

—E-ZF —ETHF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000
B 5 W KA Trade receivables 19,551 13,822

BB S EWFIERERE  Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (1,811) (1,672)
17,740 12,150
FE U = 5% Bills receivables 7,130 4,984
B 5 W IR & e E % Trade and bills receivables 24,870 17,134
T8 15 3R I8 & H h fE U kI8 Prepayments and other receivables 4,413 3,458
29,283 20,592

EEME E5REMEURENERR
BEEAQNFEMES-

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

AEBHBEERE T FH0ANEE
TEEF(ZZEZTNF:908) -

The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period
of 90 days to its customers (2009: 90 days).

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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BEZREMBEVFE (&)

FEME (&)

BEEEEE RNEEEER AEE
' 5 SR T M AR B B A
mF

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Group (Continued)
Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade

and bills receivables of the Group as at the end of the
reporting date is as follows:

—E-ZF —EENF

2010 2009

FER FET

US$’000 US$’000

90H AT 90 days or below 21,517 13,725
91H - 180H 91 — 180 days 3,164 3,409
181H - 365H 181 — 365 days 189 -
24,870 17,134

AEEZESRBFBEREEAAE
3,353,000 7t (= Z N4 : 941,000
FEL)MEWRKIER  BERERS A
HEBHERRREREIERE -5
LRIBEH R ZEZ BRI &R
MR- RIEBAELR ARAE
ERE BARZSEEHELEE &
AEEREETESAEE MEHKKA
WARAT 2 B8RS - NEB I EFRZ S
B T AR -

765 8 B 118 0 ROR [ Y B 5 R 2
EER AT :

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$3,353,000
(2009: US$941,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. These relate to a number of independent customers of
whom there is no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The Group’s ageing analysis of past due but not impaired
trade receivables is as follows:

—E-EF —ZETNF
2010 2009
FER FET
US$’000 US$’000
#1HI1ZE90H Past due over 1 — 90 days 3,164 941
#HEI91 22750 Past due over 91 — 275 days 189 =
3,353 941
BAEBBRERARA A
—E-TFFR



B ISERARMIEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z—ZF+_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

23. ES R EHMEWRIE (&) 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEME (&)

NEBEE ZERFIBNRERENES
O

(Continued)
Group (Continued)

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

—E-FF —EENF

2010 2009

FER F=ET

Us$’000 US$’000

F4) At beginning of the year 1,672 2,563

R E Exchange adjustment 51 2
B 5 W IER R E R E Provision for impairment of trade

receivables 153 50

WENTURE MMEEAESE  Amounts written off as uncollectible (65) (943)

FR At end of the year 1,811 1,672

3t B 5 7 Wk TR RO R (L 9k 18 B 1R R
BHE 5 YR IR ) B - (8RR E 7
EURFBEETESREVRRAENETS
EXR:N A E b IR QERRN T
I 8 5h 5% A BRI B AR R R

R-E-—ZTE+_A=+—H KaHH
S ARBERE 5 EUGIA £14,387,000
EX(ZFEZTNLF:11,209,0003%
L) R EEWGRIBER S EIT R
RN BEFER-

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables. The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of
US$14,387,000 (2009: US$11,209,000) were neither past
due nor impaired. These related to a large number of
diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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23. ES R EHMEWRIE (&)

FEME (&)

R-EBE—FTFE+-_FA=+—0 HupE
U R T8 & R 1B B 8 £936,0003 7T (=
TE N 1,335,000 7T)  CHERE
AETREARKEEIKGRE TEZERE
WERIBTE BRI A] 2 Sl ] - ZN 62 [ IF 48
MZEERFEEAEARR-

Hth FE WK IE R BB EE BT

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

As of 31 December 2010, a provision for impairment of
other receivables of US$936,000 (2009: US$1,335,000) was
recognised for certain long outstanding receivables as these
receivables are not expected to be fully recovered. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

—E-ZF ZEThF

2010 2009

FER F=ET

Us$’000 US$'000

F4) At beginning of the year 1,335 1,332

P 3 & Exchange adjustment 41 1
H bR ZEREE (BE)  (Reversal of)/provision for

SR impairment of other receivables (440) 2

936 1,335

BOBEM SR/ B8 EYN REH
FRE - LAEHRABENEREER
BT H R B R WGR IR B/

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was
no recent history of default.

b /N Company
—®-85  -TThH
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$'000
TE ROE Prepayments 29 16
N ERERBARAT
S —z-TEFH



B ISERARMIEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_Z—ZF+_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

24, REeERBESEEY

RehReFEYWEREATER:

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following

components:
r£EE NG|

Group Company
—E-2F% —ETNE —E-Zf —EENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
SEY TET SV FTEn
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000
Re RFTHEA Cash and bank balances 14,919 4,855 16 =
B ERARITER Less: pledged bank deposits (92) (800) - =
BeRBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14,827 4,055 16 =

RBERRITERBERT FHEREMN
FREBBEE=ZEAANERRITF
R FARTZEESREFTRBEITER
MRIZFHMERF R - HPERFREF

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at bank and in
hand, and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-

ASRITIAIZ T35 7 R BREUF B

N_ZE—ZEF+_A=+—HBEZZEZ
NE+=—A=1+—BEFRITERR
KAEBAMEETRITHREMKFELN
RITHER o

R-E—ZTFE+-_A=+—H ' K&H
K IR & MIRITAE#RB1514,345,0003 7T

—TET NG 4,737,000 7T ) B SR 1T
EHh AEFREUARB(TAREK])
AERTERABARIT AREIWIES
REBEEE.

term time deposits are placed with banks and earn interest
at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities as of 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

As of 31 December 2010, included in cash and bank
balances of the Group was US$14,345,000 (2009:
US$4,737,000) of bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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25. IR & 25. SHARE CAPITAL
RGEAR k]
Number of
shares Amount
FET
US$’000
FRRMEEC.01EILZEMIX  Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
}ii ' Authorised:
RZZEZRFNATH At 10 September 2009 (date of
(FEfBACSZBER) » incorporation), 31 December 2009
—EENF+A and 31 December 2010
=t+—HEZZE—ZF
+=-—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
BERTRHAR: Issued and fully paid:
—RZZEZNFNA+A — Issue of share on 10 September 2009
BTG 1 =
—ETNFE+ZA At 31 December 2009 and
_‘1— A= —FF 1 January 2010
—HA—H 1 =
—REAEEEHEMET — Issue of shares pursuant to Group
gn) Reorganisation 299,999,999 3,000
—RERAFEE - Placing and public offering 100,000,000 1,000
— 1T B R A AR - Exercise of over-allotment option 15,000,000 150
RZZE—TF At 31 December 2010
+=ZA=+—H 415,000,000 4,150

ARBR_FTZNFNAA+HEMK
3 EEMAN /200,000,000 7T - B A
20,000,000,0008% A% 7 + H & 1 AR A% 13

The Company was incorporated on 10 September 2009
with authorised share capital of US$200,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 shares of which 1 share was allotted

%&@E%&ﬁfﬁﬂﬂa@;&%./h. r B2
EAENEE (FE)BRAR ZAH
ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%iﬁ’]ﬁﬁi““
*Hﬁ*ﬁ_ﬁﬁ A ([BALEBEBVI | ) WEER

T FL /\

RZZE—ZFTFWMA=+—H
299,999,999/% & i% M 180.013E JT 7 &
MEBT EARBASEEEHKER
A BEBVIZHEBRITRANNKE-

BB RER AR
—T-ZEER

which was then transferred to Cathay International Pharma
Manufacture & Distribution (China) Limited, an immediate
holding company of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI”), on the same date.

On 21 April 2010, 299,999,999 shares of US$0.01 each
were issued in consideration for the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI pursuant
to the Group Reorganisation.



B ISERARMIEE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

@K

—RE+ZA=T—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

25.

26.

R (#)

R-_E—ZTFERALH" momamo
f% & M EE0.01E T A A 7] A%
EREBERE N AMABEERT #kﬁ@

3901 T ([KmEE]) -FAA  AQFA
B B R BT BT o

RZZE-—ZFFRA-+/\A BERERK
HETE WIRERI.BTE—THEH
1715,000,000/% & IX EI{E0.01 & TTHI AR

{/\ ®

D

FIBFRBETHRMNEMSE T HEE R
BANBRN BB BRI -

R-FBFAF+_A=1+—H 2~KH
MR ANEEAE B EBVINE BT RAE
B A

fié #48

BingBRRBEEEEROEENZE
gﬁo

AERMEBARBRTEE A NR
R EBARNENDEESA
DIkEREER -

SNE PR RIGEINEI B A R A
MHEBERMERLER -

R_ZEZNF—F—BRER_ZTNEF
T A=+ —HANERRGBARE: ()3
EEEBVITEB MR MK ABREE U
H &R 1% 5 B U iE = 0% 3 2 ROR I B
A ) A% SR 15w 1 R B BT AT 0 2R B A
7 RNEERREEREEEEK
> B A% 3R (0] A9 BA A B8 ZEBVIRR 15 HY K
N ENMZHESTBEER_ZESNF—
B—HBRI5Ek -

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 7 May 2010, 100,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01
each of the Company were issued at HK$3.91 by way of
placing and public offering (“Share Offering”). On the same
date, the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange.

On 28 May 2010, an over-allotment option was exercised
and a further 15,000,000 shares of US$0.01 each were
issued at HK$3.91 per share.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with
the then existing shares in all respect.

The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2009
represented the issued and paid up share capital of Lansen
Pharmaceutical BVI.

RESERVES

The share premium represents the excess over the nominal
value for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits
of the PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund
account as required by the relevant PRC statue.

The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Treasury shares as of 1 January 2009 and 31 December
2009 represented (i) the remaining balance of the cost of
shares set aside by Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI for future
issuance of the earn-out shares to the management in
accordance with the shareholders’ agreement regarding
the acquisition of Ningbo Liwah and Shenzhen Lansen and
(i) the cost of the shares of Lansen Pharmaceutical BVI
redeemed from the minority shareholders upon the disposal
of the CICBP Group as if such disposal had been completed
prior to 1 January 2009.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

26. e (&)

26. RESERVES (Continued)

AT Company
B 1P EE R2itE#R @t
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
TEx Txx TR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RZZEZNFNATHE At 10 September 2009
(A ZEH) (Date of incorporation) = = =
BTl (D (HFE25) Issue of shares (note 25) = = =
HEFEAETRS Transaction with owners = = =
R=ZFZTNE+ = F=+—H At 31 December 2009 and
E=E—ZF—-F—H 1 January 2010 = = =
BEAEESHAMEITRD  Issue of shares pursuant to Group
Reorganisation 22,020 = 22,020
BT (D (F7E25) Issue of shares (note 25) 56,571 = 56,571
BOBETRY Share issue expenses (4,726) - (4,726)
BRE (HEE13) Dividend (note 13) (5,390) - (5,390)
BHEFANETRS Transaction with owners 68,475 - 68,475
FNEE Loss for the year = (797) (797)
FNEANEEE Total comprehensive income for the year = (797) (797)
R-E-2f
+=ZA=+-—-H At 31 December 2010 68,475 (797) (67,678)

BAE B BRI R A A
UBELIR X3 2
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27. B & 27. BORROWINGS
rEE Group
—E-EfF —ZETAF
2010 2009
FExn FET
Us$’000 US$’000
ERIRITER Fixed-rate bank loans 453 =
FEIRITER Variable-rate bank loans 10,240 14,446
HigE Other borrowings - 4,842
10,693 19,288
BHEA Secured 10,240 13,728
1 Unsecured 453 5,560
10,693 19,288
—E-FF —ZETAF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
Us$’000 US$’000
RITEF: Bank loans:
1F R Within one year 3,303 4,039
ke In the second year 2,690 1,340
EIERFHF In the third to fifth year 4,700 9,067
AMSFEAZHEE Wholly repayable within 5 years 10,693 14,446
M FE AR EAMEE Other borrowings due within one year - 4,842
B FEARNLEERFKIE  Less: amount due for settlement
within one year (8,303) (8,881)
AR1FBESHEMIIE  Amount due for settlement
after one year 7,390 10,407

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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27. 5 & (#&)
REE (M)

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Group (Continued)

—E-EF ZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$’000

Rk : Represented by:
AREEE Borrowings in RMB 1,963 9,969
ETLEE Borrowings in US$ 8,730 9,319
10,693 19,288

REmEHR EEHATEREERM:

As at the end of the reporting period, the borrowings are

secured by:
—E-EfF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
+ b A R Land use rights 833 2,024
Y- WE kB Property, plant and equipment 3,138 9,608

EEREERREREERRNEEN
HERMEI6RITHE -

B E453,000F T (ZEE N F:
1,758,000% 7T ) M E K TG E AR ERH

The details of assets have been pledged as collateral to
secure the borrowings were disclosed in notes 16 and 17.

The unsecured borrowings of US$453,000 (2009:
US$1,758,000) were guaranteed by a subsidiary of the

— R B A REER- Group.
—E-BF —ZETAF
2010 2009
FTEx FETT
US$’000 US$’000
ERFI=: Effective interest rate:
|ITEK Bank loans 2.97% 3.30%
BB EIERAR QA
—E-TFFR
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28. Ik fE B A 28. DEFERRED TAX

rE Group
—E2-2F ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$’000
F 1) At beginning of the year 394 122

B IEEY T Withholding income tax

—FF AR — Charged to profit or loss - 325
—F A - Paid during the year - (53)
FR At end of the year 394 394

BEFECEMESHRE BT NF
— B —HE BPEHE AR ATERIRA
o A T B R BV AR B B BN TR0 AR © AR
& B R 2R 0 oK kR B BT B A B BREX
#910,758,0003 7T 4 FI| T EE A O & g 2=

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences

HEEHRLER EEME - attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to US$10,758,000.
b NN Company
R_ZE—ZFFF+_A=+—Bk=_ZZF As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the
NE+ZA=+—H XRalWEEM Company did not have any material temporary differences.
BAGREERE-
29. EZ R HAMENRE 29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
KEE Group
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FER F=ET
Us$’000 US$’000
B S RIE Trade payables 4,346 4,610
EREE Bills payables 185 559
BHEMNFIEREMNEE  Trade and bills payables 4,531 5,169
E b fE S FE R B AT IR Other payables and accruals 3,581 7,812
8,112 12,981

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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29. B R H BT FRIA 29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(#&) (Continued)
AEE (E) Group (Continued)
BREZEHH RNREPFHR ~5E Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and
HWE S ENFERENEENRR DT bills payables of the Group as at the end of the reporting
LU date is as follows:
—ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FER F=ET
Us$’000 US$’000
0H AT 90 days or below 3,645 2,821
91H £180H 91 — 180 days 451 1,422
181H 2365H 181 — 365 days 111 450
88365 H Over 365 days 324 476
4,531 5,169
RZE—ZTF+_A=+—HEKZ As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, bills
TTNF+_A=+—H ERNZEE payables of US$185,000 and US$559,000 respectively were
185,000 7t &559,0003 7t M B K # secured by the pledged bank deposits.
RITFERAE -
EERARE S REMENFIENREE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
HEAFEBE- and other payables approximate to their fair values.
¥ YN Company
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FER F=ET
Us$’000 US$’000
FEETFRIB Accruals 122 =

j BB RER AR
—T-ZEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

30. FE{S[E 2 B /B 2 R KR

31.

ZEFARERR B RARELRE
EBE EXZRR/RTHEBNEAEER
FEBE -

Bt 75 A 8 31.

30. AMOUNT DUE TO A FELLOW

SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The directors consider that the
carrying amounts of the balances approximate their fair
values.

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

BEHYEE Operating lease commitment
& Group
—E-ZF ZZETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
Us$’000 US$'000
RIBET AT HGE & 2 A A Future minimum rental payable under
AREEENBESLT non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:
1F R Within one year 97 62
2FE55F Between two and five years 269 -
366 62

AEBENZEEHEOERAETYE -HD
NERBM=F(ZZTThF:—F) 7
RiEmBHRXAREMEREETET W
EHNEHERSERY - ZFHOBT
BREREMNKAEE-

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of three years (2009: one
year), with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry
dates or at days as mutually agreed between the Group and
the respective landlords. None of these leases includes any
contingent rentals.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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HE-_Z—ZF+_A=-+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

31. B AIE (&) 31. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
BEHENAE (B) Operating lease commitment (Continued)
PN Company

—E-%F  —TThF
2010 2009
FER FET
US$’000 US$’000

RIE A RSEALTHLMA  Future minimum rental payable under

REEEFESOT non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:
1FE A Within one year 6 =
2E55F Between two and five years 8 =
14 -
BRI Capital commitment
KEE Group
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
FER F=ET
Us$’000 US$’000
Db R ET X R EARAYE :  Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
BEREE Construction and equipment 359 444
RN B EE HE B B Development of IPR 1,190 916
1,549 1,360
RZZE—ZEF+_A=F+—HBERZ=ZTZT The Company had no capital commitments as at 31
NE+—_A=1+—H AQARPEEAR December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
HHE o

N EREERARAR
$ —T-TEER
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32.

[ B &

AEEMHRAELLERRERDNS
BUMBRER ARENRREENER
M REEZETAE T HERM
BERAEBENEMEPHRESRE -

EERRE

AEENETEZERMEERRITERMER
T EHNMEMBKIE LTI AKE
REREEMMYNKEREERRE
ﬁOﬁEIWETHVIEXEE%ﬁ
WHR AP BRAR2INEEE
HREKRRRER LB ANEEE
EERELR LY EMEBEREONG
MG -

BREEERR AEEEEECRE
EERE - Eﬁl%ﬁﬁ#EZf
I 1;f%?ﬂ:&ﬁ1ﬂ§ki B ARER
ZHREERETB) YL Bl 8 BRE 1A o

RN-_E—ZTFE+_A=+—H BH5FE
W E S 523% (ZEE N4
14% ) REARNEBHRARF ©

RBETEERRAR TERHFHE

HZRIT o

ARAREFERVHEENRBDES AR
BEER REEAKENE -+ &Y
B hRPpESEER K-

AEBBBEFITE @A RITRBM
FHEEERE FEERBALREERR
%/ALE fﬂ@ﬂﬁiTﬁmﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁg{E
B EIEIB R RERRE LR

32. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The
Group’s risk management is coordinated at its headquarters
in close cooperation with the directors and focuses on
actively securing the Group’s short to medium term cash
flows.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances
and cash and trade and other receivables, which represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position are net
of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

As of 31 December 2010, 23% (2009: 14%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks.

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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32. A EIE (&)

REESERE (#)

TRADAEBIFTESRBENRT
BRZHMENFE - TRIOBREBEAKHE
RAKREREENZFARNERHEE
ARBRERERH -EBME T
RITERITEENOA M HHRE
KEEGRXHRITE R ARERRH
HE -HMWITESRBENIIHAE D
MR EWMEERA Mime-

TRESMNEXRASRERE &N B
MARZBNERFENFERT - KRR
TRNVERBEH RO RBRFTE -

32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

& Group
—g-%%
2010
15/ 1228 285%F #ct
Within Between one Between two
oneyear andtwoyears  and five years Total
TxR Txrn TER Txn
US$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FERTREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 3,536 2,827 4,753 11,116
ZHEMNFERENZIE Trade and bills payables 4,531 - - 4,531
E i fE{F FUA R 5+ 2B Other payables and accruals 3,545 - - 3,545
11,612 2,827 4,753 19,192

BB RER AR
—_T-ZTEER
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32. BB (&) 32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
RBESER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)

AEE(H) Group (Continued)

ZETNE
2009
1R 122F TS @t
Within Between one Between two
one year and two years and five years Total
TEr Txr FET TEr
US$000 Us$000 US$000 US$'000
FERTREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 9,344 1,724 9,413 20,481
B RN FERENRE Trade and bills payables 5,169 - - 5,169
H b [ (708 [ B 5T 58 Other payables and accruals 7,812 = = 7,812
R R R B AR Amount due to a fellow
HFE subsidiary 311 = = 311
22,636 1,724 9,413 33,773
Vi NN Company
“2-%F%
2010
1E R 122f 2855 st
Within Between one Between two
oneyear andtwoyears  and five years Total
FER FER TER FER
us$'000 US$000 US$’000 Us$’000
e RIR Accruals 122 - - 122
ZEENE
2009
15/ 122F 2E5%F @t
Within Between one Between two
one year and two years and five years Total
TEr Txr FET TEr
US$'000 Us$000 US$'000 US$'000
ENEENGE Amount due to a subsidiary 16 = = 16

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED o
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32. A EIE (&)

REESER (#)

257 8 0 BB BIR S AT 0
Pl e E X RIS ES BB BT
STAFAENSESEEE-

S L B

REBR 5 EE AR INE BB &
W-ARARENBARRANAEED
TREENABOUZEMNBERARNA
e Rt E-

RSB B AR SMNE PR - AT
EEEBERIMNERR  WHNETEE

Z [ 4 N ES R B o
ARSI RAR A A
—T-ZEER

32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated
in the respective functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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32.

ELB%:%EE ( l\ﬁ>
R = 3 b

AEEHEHNTHMNEEBE R 2
RSN XA BN AKEBEREE
REBEHRITEEMNERMERERER
PYRE274% 58 - AN B Al I £ ] A K
HRBR -

TXHRENBRESN - IREREH
RIFVTET AWM ERREE - 5LF 5
MEBEMS BEINTIERNRE
HRABAEENAESERNE/FEN
AEEMBRHE - ERABRNETEEEASR
45 ) 2 [ B I 2 FR50RE BE B AT BE
MIEE  ETREEBYHNENSIER
REEB R -

fhF) % T B,/ FHE0R S - T FT A 2t
SRMFTE AEE:

e HE-—_ZTZ-TF+-_F=+—A1
LTEEHNRENER T —ZTF
+=—A=+—HBHRBEFD R
#90,/ ® 50,000 T (ZEE
JLEE - 3840, 4 70,000% 7T ) ¢
FERRASEENZEEE@E
BRI R E R AT &

e AEER=-_ZT—ZTHF+=A
=+ —BHEES BIE I w D
50,0003 7T (ZEZT A4 #1,/
A 70,0005 7T ) °

KEIE’]HEﬁ%Eiﬂéi*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%
CHABREARERES %F§$E’Jﬁz
Kﬂ%iﬁ%ﬂéﬁﬁ*ﬁ%@ﬂ’]ﬂ %

32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’'s debt
obligations with floating interest rates. The interest rate and
terms of repayment of bank borrowings of the Group are
disclosed in note 27. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating
rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
retained profits as at 31 December 2010 would
increase/decrease by US$50,000 (2009: increase/
decrease by US$70,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings; and

o The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2010 would
increase/decrease by US$50,000 (2009: increase/
decrease by US$70,000).

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the committee considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. AERE (&) 32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
RERNEIHNEREEREBHE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category
BBARRKRAES W REEE TR The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial
EERCHAGHRNGHA- position relate to the following categories of financial assets

and financial liabilities.

wE Group
—E-EF —ETNF
2010 2009
FTEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
EMEE Financial assets
B3R K FE W ERIA Loans and receivables:
B 5 K H b e W k1A Trade and other receivables 27,526 18,769
TR RITIERX Pledged bank deposits 92 800
ReEKBRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 14,827 4,055
42,445 23,624
o= 8= Financial liabilities
LHEE A AT BE N £ B & & ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
BE Borrowings 10,693 19,288
JEST R R B A R B 508 Amount due to a fellow subsidiary - 311
B 5 & H b S 5RIE Trade and other payables 8,076 12,981
18,769 32,580

BAAEBEERER AR
—_T-ZEER
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32. A EIE (&) 32.

BEREINERNEEREBHE
(&)

ENTS

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

Vi NN Company
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FEx FET
US$’000 US$’000
EMEE Financial assets
B R FRIE Loans and receivables:
JE W Bt /BB A R 5RIA Amount due from a subsidiary 46,885 =
Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ{,\% Cash and cash equivalents 16 =
46,901 -
EA =R Financial liabilities
LHEE A AT BE N £ B B & ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
NN E S| Amount due to a subsidiary - 16
FEET A Accruals 122 =
122 16
EXERE Capital management

ﬁ’il BHEERN UHEARASENE

BAFELEE ANEEECEFER
ﬁﬂ’]tté REEFRBEARERAD
B-AEENERBRBEA _TTAF
TZA=+T—BESHFETE-

AEENEARBEEER (BaME

ZYT&E'EE’JFT) RekRAeFEEBYMNR

RRAESERAARGEDR (B2E%
éfﬁ R REAF)

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from 31 December
2009.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 27, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings.
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
its overall financing structure. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In other to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was

as follows:
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
FEx FETT
Us$’000 US$’000
BE (KzEe7) Borrowings (note 27) 10,693 19,288
4 NMIRTT4 4 (M5F24)  Cash and bank balances (note 24) (14,919) (4,855)
B F & Net debt (4,226) 14,433
e o Equity 92,265 29,956
B ER FRE L X Net debt to equity ratio T AN/A 48.2%

PAEREZERAERAR

—T-ZEFER
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those transactions and balances with related

R AERON - PN A B R 7 1T T B parties disclosed in notes 10 and 30, the following
2 transactions were carried out with related parties during the
year:
—E-ZF ZETNF
2010 2009
Bt 5 FEx FET
Notes US$’000 US$’000
LT Non-recurring:
U —RFZHBAR Interest income receivable
M EHA from a fellow subsidiary 0] - 213
BENf—XREZRHEAR Rental fees paid
HeEH to fellow subsidiaries (i) (8) (38)

0} 17) [ 2% B B8 2 A 42 4 A0 T R A B L A1) B Lk
AN ZBEFNECREAEENRITER
(BRARMBARER) - FARNMEBRBRE
MARERRBE-—ZENF T -_A=1+—
H L FE AR

(i RAKEEEEEMTNMAEYE BE
rezEHemARANBEAR NN E
e

AAREFRE U EEBALRST
— TR R AR R R R
e 17 o

TEERABNFMARE XN TAR
BAEEMER FRRMEI0-

(i) Interest income receivable from loan to a fellow subsidiary. The loan was
financed by the Group’s borrowings from banker which was guaranteed
by fellow subsidiaries. The corporate guarantees provided by fellow
subsidiaries were released during the year ended 31 December 2009.

(i) Fees paid to fellow subsidiaries for rental of office premises, hotel and
meeting room for daily operation of the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 10.
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34.

35.

TEHFBRERS

EHZE_ZZNF+_A=1+—HLHF
fE - REEE10,300,000% TRITEE
(AR EH B R REN QR ERER
PIEEETZRERANB AR - EHIR
TEFREEWETZRAMNBARNE
AL IR S - B EIBRITERIE AT H
ZRAZWBRRRENQRIERDER
%o

EEE-ZTZNF+A=T—HIEHF
B BE-ZEN\F+=-A=t+—H8%A
IEHENTFHERERBE-_EENEF
+TZA=t+—HLEFENRBEREAR
4,140,000k L BN IB N EBEE
EEESNERRERERBITHLERE
ZEBVIERMEE1E T L BAR (LA
BAAE B EBVIER MFEEFRG) &
(I

AREEEMBLEZFE
ARAEBHBAAN-E—FF+=

A=+-BR-ZEAFE+=A=1—
A EEmT

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s
bank borrowings of US$10,300,000, which were secured
by a corporate guarantee from a fellow subsidiary, had been
assigned to that fellow subsidiary. Such assignment of bank
borrowings was offset against the balance of the loan to the
fellow subsidiary. After such assignment of bank borrowings,
the corporate guarantee previously provided by that fellow

subsidiary was released.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the interim
dividend payable as of 31 December 2008 and final
dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2008
totaling US$4,140,000 was settled by offsetting against the
loans to management and the issuance of ordinary shares
of US$1 each in Lansen Pharmaceuticals BVI, which were
previously redeemed and held as treasury shares by Lansen

Pharmaceuticals BVI.

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

ML BRITRAR

£ BIBR b5 BRA/ERERFE ARAEFANEREE FIEXRK
Particulars of

Country/Place of  issued and fully

incorporation/ paid share capital/ Effective interest Principal
Name establishment registered capital held by the Company activities

—E-%F “TTNH
2010 2009
EERARES
Interests held directly
BB B R AR A A RERUHE 29,491,360 & R E & 100% 100% REER
1R B
Lansen Pharmaceutical British Virgin 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment
Holdings Limited Islands shares of US$1 each holding
MEsAEER
Interests held indirectly
REBRBEBRAR BE 1REEIETS 100% 100% KEERK
Egalish)
Point Kin International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment
Limited each holding
PAEBEITIRAR AR
T -TFEFH
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35. KRAAEEMB AT 251E  35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

(#&) SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
ML BRIRMR
8 BIBER, % R E AR ARRFANEREE IEXK
Particulars of
Country/Place of  issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/ Effective interest Principal
Name establishment registered capital held by the Company activities
—E-ZF —TTNF
2010 2009

MEsaEs (8)

Interests held indirectly (Continued)

BAERE (BH) BB 100/ & IR E B 18 T 2 100% - REEK
BRA A LR

Lansen Investments Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each holding

REBECRIDERRA FE A R #29,498,0007T 100% 100% BEEK

Lansen Medicine PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
(Shenzhen) Company business
Limited

BN EREFR NG el AR #236,000,0007T 100% 100%  EEEETK

(ZEZNF:
AR #135,000,0007T )

Ningbo Liwah PRC RMB236,000,000 (2009: 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical RMB135,000,000) business
Company Limited

BRI EE YR a3 A R #28,000,0007T 100% 100% BEEH
BRAA] (ZBZNEF:

A #18,000,0007T)

Ningbo Liwah Plant PRC RMB28,000,000 (2009: 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Extraction Technology RMB18,000,000) business
Limited

BERRAERERRAA h A R #35,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXK

(ZEZNEF:
A K #10,000,0007T)

Ningbo Lansen PRC RMB35,000,000 (2009: 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical RMB10,000,000) business

Company Limited

ERABINEZRBEAEBEESE
EEEEZVENHBAR -EZRA"
REHEMMNBARMNFESEREEA
RITKe

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

LANSEN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December

—EELFE ZZTTENEFE —EBEEHF CZB-BF
2007 2008 2009 2010
ES 5 RESULTS
WA Revenue 24,150 37,119 47,932 58,607
E A Gross profit 16,455 26,025 32,439 38,433
B 5 A1 g A Profit before income tax 836 5,952 8,903 12,785
FriS 8 < Income tax expense (404) (879) (1,523) (2,572)
F 5 Profit for the year 432 5,073 7,380 10,213
R+t=-—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EELFE ZZTENFE —EEhF ZB-BF
2007 2008 2009 2010
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BB E Total assets 46,942 60,377 63,188 112,611
BEE Total liabilities (25,903) (37,635) (33,232) (20,346)
BEEFE Net assets 21,039 22742 29,956 92,265

BE_TTNF+_A=1t—RHIE=EFE
EENXENEERABEME DRHEEX
RAR-_F-—ZFFHA -+ LB TBENER

iR

BAAEBEERER AR
T -TFEFH

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2009 were extracted from the
Company’s prospectus dated 27 April 2010.
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